
 

 

 CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

1301 81ST AVENUE N.E. 

 AGENDA 

 MARCH 7, 2016 

 7:00 P.M. 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Approval of Minutes – February 16, 2016 

B. 2016 First Half Suburban Rate Authority Assessments 

C. 1st Quarter Billing for 2017 Property Tax Assessment – Ken Tolzmann 

D. Sign Permits 

E. Contractor’s Licenses 

F. Business License – One Day Liquor License for Tower Days 

G. Correspondence 

7. PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 

8. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

9. RESOLUTIONS AND/OR ORDINANCES 

A.  Ordinance No. 424 Amending Chapter 31 of the Spring Lake Park Code or Ordinance   

      Related to the Size of the Parks and Recreation Commission 

10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Parks and Recreation Commission Appointments 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Approving Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan for Emmanuel Christian Center 

12. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

13. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

14. REPORTS 

15. OTHER 

A. Administrator Reports 

16. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 





  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on February 16, 2016 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 

P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Nash, Nelson, Wendling and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: Councilmember Mason 

 

Staff Present: Police Chief Ebeltoft; Building Official Brainard; Attorney Thames; Engineer 

Gravel; Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall; Liquor Store Manager Swanson; 

Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant Gooden  

 

Visitors: Heidi Arnson, North Metro TV 

 Family and Friends of Officer Imig 

      

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda   

 

Administrator Buchholtz asked that Item 6K, Renewal Application of 2 AM Liquor License for Monte’s Sports 

Bar, be added to the agenda. 

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor – None 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

A. Approval of Minutes – February 1, 2016 

B. Disbursements 

 1. General Fund Disbursement Claim No.  16-01 -- $267,986.58 

 2. Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No.    16-02 -- $151,849.39 

C. Budget to Date (December 2015) 

D. Budget to Date/Statement of Fund Balance (January 2016) 

E. Right of Way Application #1 – Centerpoint Energy 

F. Right of Way Application #2 – Centerpoint Energy 

G. Approval of Firework Stand Lease 

H. Contractor’s License 

I. Business License – Massage Therapy 

J. Correspondence 

K. Renewal Application 2 AM Liquor License – Monte’s Sports Bar 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA.  ROLL 

CALL VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 February 16, 2016 

 

7.  Presentation 

 

A.  Swearing In of Police Officer – Aaron Imig 

 

Administrator Buchholtz administered the Oath of Office to Police Officer Aaron Imig and welcomed him 

to the City of Spring Lake Park. 

 

8. Police Report 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reviewed the January 2016 department statistics. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft stated that the Police Department responded to four hundred calls for service for the month of 

January 2016 comparted to four hundred forty-one calls for service in January 2015.  He reminded residents to 

allow extra driving time due to weather and road conditions to assist with getting to their designated destinations 

safely. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported, in addition to addressing the day-to-day operations of the Department, he attended 

numerous meetings throughout the month representing Spring Lake Park Police Department and the City of 

Spring Lake Park not only on a local level but also on a regional and national level.  

 

9.  Parks and Recreation Report 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reviewed the January 2015 department statistics. Ms. Rygwall reported 

that the Parks and Recreation Commission met and reviewed the Santa breakfast event and offered suggestions 

for next year.  

 

Ms. Rygwall stated that staff had a busy month preparing and reviewing the next activity brochure and 

preparing for the Senior Valentine Luncheon and Sweetheart Dance.  She stated that staff has started working 

on softball sponsorships and preparing for the softball season. 

 

Ms. Rygwall reported preparation for Tower Days has started and staff has been working on updates, parade 

applications, contracts and updating the website.  She stated that the family fun event at Able Park was well 

attended.  She reported that the aerator in Spring Lake has not had to been utilized due to comfortable oxygen 

levels in the lake. 

 

10. Ordinances and/or Resolutions 

 

A.  Resolution 16-03 Regarding Amendment of the Amended Joint and Cooperative Agreement for the   

     Administration of a Cable Communications System to Amend the commission’s Authority to Issue Bonds,   

     Obligations and Other Forms of Indebtness and to Modify the Member Cities’ Use of Certain Franchise   

     Fees 

  

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the North Metro TV (NMTV) has reached a point where significant 

technology upgrades are needed to maintain and improve the viewer’s experience of its public access channels. 

He stated that much the equipment is obsolete and is becoming difficult and expensive to fix.  He added that 

North Metro TV is still broadcasting in standard definition, despite high definition being the new standard. He 

reported that the upgrades to the production truck, master control, video systems and studios will cost 

approximately $2 million. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 February 16, 2016 

 

Administrator Buchholtz explained that in order to pay for these upgrades, the Commission is seeking authority 

from its member cities (Blaine, Spring Lake Park, Lino Lakes, Centerville, Ham Lake, Lexington and Circle 

Pines) to issue a general obligation equipment certificate.  He stated the equipment certificate would be issued 

by the City of Circle Pines, with each member city pledging its taxing authority for its share of the bond.  He 

stated that the City of Spring Lake Park’s share of the bond would be 5.76% or $118,912. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that, while the City is required to pledge its taxing authority for its share of 

the general obligation equipment certificate, the Commission will repay the bond with franchise fee revenues.  

He stated the Commission has routinely budgeted over $300,000 for capital improvements on an annual basis 

and will utilize these budgeted dollars to make the annual debt service payment of $226,000. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the North Metro Telecommunications Commission JPA needs to be 

updated to grant the Commission authority to bond for capital improvements. He stated the Commission is also 

requesting one additional section to be amended based on a request from the City of Blaine.  He stated that the 

use of the franchise fees remitted back to member cities is restricted to cable-related expenses. He reported that 

the commission is seeking to broaden that use to allow of expenses related to citizen communications. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that once these improvements are made at NMTV, the City Council meetings 

will be broadcasted in high definition. 

 

North Metro TV Executive Director Arnson stated that she is very excited for this project. She reported that a 

settlement with Comcast and CenturyLink will now allow the broadcasting to take place in high definition.  

She stated this agreement will allow major upgrades of equipment that is no longer repairable and can now be 

replaced.  She also said that the North Metro TV building loan is paid off therefore, there is no financial 

obligation with the building.    

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired about the impact CenturyLink’s entry into the City will have on franchise 

fees. Ms. Arnson said that she expects growth in franchise fees due to a higher cable penetration rate. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired as to when the the broadcasting will be fully operational in high definition.  

Ms. Arnson stated that she hopes the master control and equipment will be upgraded by the end of the summer. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NASH TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 16-03 REGARDING 

AMENDMENT OF THE AMENDED JOINT AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR THE 

ADMINISTRATION OF A CABLE COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEM TO AMEND THE COMMISSION’S  

AUTHORITY TO ISSUE BONDS, OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER FORMS OF INDEBTEDNESS AND 

TO MODIFY THE MEMBER CITIES’ USE OF CERTAIN FRANCHISE FEES. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL 

AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Resolution 16-04 Concurring with Issuance of GO Capital Notes by the City of  Circle Pines 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the North Metro Telecommunications Commission (NMTC) is seeking 

the issuance of $2,065,000 in bonds for the replacement and update of its aging video systems to accommodate 

the transition to high definition. 

 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City of Circle Pines, on behalf of NMTC, is willing to issue general 

obligation capital equipment certificates to finance the project. He stated the the Commission will save 

$136,000 in interest and financing costs under this option rather than through Commission-issued debt.  He 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 February 16, 2016 

 

stated that in order to issue the certificate, Circle Pines is seeking individual obligation pledge form each of the 

member cities for their share of the certificate in the form of capital notes held by Circle Pines.  He stated that 

the City of Spring Lake Park’s general obligation capital note would be $118,912.  He stated that while the 

City’s share would count toward the City’s statutory debt limit, the City is currently $10 million under the 

statutory debt limit. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz explained that the general obligation capital equipment certificates will be paid with 

franchise fees collected by the NMTC. He stated that funds are currently budged for in the NMTC’s 2016 

budget to cover the annual debt service.  He stated that no City property tax dollars will be used to fund the 

repayment of the bond.  He stated that repayment of these capital notes will not be levied for. 

 

Executive Director Arnson explained that the franchise fees that were collected in 2015 are already available 

to be used to make the first payment. She explained that franchise fees are collected a year in advance so the 

first loan payment due in 2017 has funds available to be used to make that payment.  

 

Mayor Hansen restated that no City property tax dollars are used for repayment and the repayment amount will 

not be levied.  

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 16-04 A 

RESOLUTION CONCURRING IN THE ISSUANCE OF THE GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL 

NOTES, SERIES 2016A BY THE CITY OF CIRCLE PINES, MINNESOTA, AND AUTHORIZING 

EXECUTION OF A TO BE ISSUED GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL NOTE, SERIES 2016A AND 

LEVYING A TAX FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

C.  Resolution 16-05 Approving a One-Year Extension of the PUD, SUP and Site Plan for 525 Osborne Road  

      Medical Office Facility 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the North Suburban Hospital District has requested a one-year extension 

on their application for a special use permit for the property located at 525 Osborne Road NE. He stated that 

the Hospital District is still working with Allina Health on the project and construction is not ready to start on 

the site.  He stated that the specifics of the projects has not changed. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if the storm water runoff issues have been addressed since the last meeting 

with the Hospital District.  Engineer Gravel stated that the conditions that were added to the approved 

conditional use permit still apply and will need to be met. He stated that no final plans have been submitted. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 16-05 APPROVING A ONE-

YEAR EXTENSION OF THE PUD, SUP AND SITE PLAN FOR 525 OSBORNE ROAD NE, SPRING 

LAKE PARK.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

11.  New Business 

 

A.  Approval of Liquor Store 2016 Budget 

 

Liquor Store Manager Swanson presented the proposed Central Park Liquor budget for 2106.  She reported 

that the Liquor Commission asked that she modify the budget from the first draft that was presented to the 

Commission.   

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 February 16, 2016 

 

Ms. Swanson reported that she reviewed the budget and removed unemployment benefits, workers 

compensation claims, landscaping materials, uniforms, engineering fees, legal fees, employment advertising, 

printing and publishing costs from the proposed budget to allow a profit of $73,549 over expenditures after the 

transfer to the general fund. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired why the workers compensation claims was removed as he thought it was a 

requirement to carry workers compensation. Administrator Buchholtz stated that it was the deductible amount 

that was removed not the actual workers compensation insurance premium. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE THE 2016 CENTRAL PARK LIQUOR STORE 

BUDGET. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

B.  Approval of Liquor Store Consulting Contract with Delaney Consulting 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that with the competitive challenges facing the retail liquor industry, it is 

important to assess our municipal liquor store to determine its strengths and weaknesses and seek solution to 

improve operations.  He stated that staff is requesting authority from the City Council to enter into a contract 

with Delaney Consulting to facilitate such an assessment of Central Park Liquor.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the business assessment would include the following: 

 A high-level review of the municipal operation versus the marketplace in terms of product 

assortment/selection, merchandising and in-store environment, customer service and digital 

and traditional marketing. 

 A detailed customer survey to  gain insights from the current customer base and noncustomers 

  Interviews with key vendors to get a rounded view of the operation. 

 A review of financial reports and store performance. 

 A SWOT (Strength-Weaknesses-Opportunities-Threats) analysis. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated in addition, staff also recommends adding the following services: 

 Mystery shops for the municipal stores and three competitors. 

 An in-store conditions deep-dive, including a staff assessment. 

 An everyday pricing analysis of the top 50 SKU’s versus up to five competitors. 

 A promotional pricing analysis of the top 100 SKU’s versus up to five competitors. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the outcome will be a current assessment of the City’s liquor store 

operation with prioritized recommendation/roadmap on how to improve business performance in the future.  

He stated that this report would also allow the Liquor Commission to establish goals for liquor store 

management and over store performance.  He stated that he anticipates the report to be available within the 

next three months. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the price of the services is $6,050, which would be funded through the 

liquor store enterprise fund.  He stated that at the Liquor Commission’s suggestion, staff has reviewed the 

proposed 2016 operations budget for efficiencies to help offset the cost of the assessment. 

 

Councilmember Nelson expressed that he liked the idea of the assessment especially with the changing 

competitive environment. 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 February 16, 2016 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE LIQUOR STORE CONTRACT 

WITH DELANEY CONSULTING. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz asked that the Council meeting be closed to discuss labor negotiation strategies. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NASH TO CLOSE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING TO 

DISCUSS LABOR NEGOTIATION STRATEGIES. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was recessed at 7:49 p.m. 

 

Mayor Hansen reconvened the meeting at 8:00 p.m. 

 

Attorney Thames stated that the Council met in closed session to discuss labor negotiations.  Mr. Thames stated 

that there was discussion and staff was provided direction on how to proceed. 

 

C.  Ratification of 2016/2017 Public Works Labor Contract 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that on January 29, 2016, the I.U.O.E. Local 49 Public Works Union 

employees accepted the following offer negotiated by the Public Works Negotiation Committee: 

 

 1.  Article XVI – Duration:  January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017 

 

 2.  Article X – Wages 

      2016 (effective 2/1/16) – 2.5% 

      2017 (effective 1/1/17) – 3% 

 

 3.  Article XI – Clothing Allowance 

      $475.00 for 2016 

      $475.00 for 2017 

 

 4. Memorandum of Understanding 

     Approval of MOU on participation in the Central Pension Fund 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated the Negotiation Committee is recommending that the City Council ratify the 

2016/2017 union contract as outlined. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE RATIFICATION OF 2016/2017 PUBLIC 

WORKS LABOR CONTRACT. ROLL CALL VOTE. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

D.  Parks and Recreation Commission and Planning Commission Appointments 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that there is currently one opening on the Planning Commission and one 

opening on the Park and Recreation Commission.  He started that staff advertised the Commission openings 

and received the following applications. 

   

  Planning Commission (3 year term; term expires 12/31/18) 

 Hans Hansen 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 February 16, 2016 

 

  Parks and Recreation Commission (unexpired portion of 3 year term; term expires 12/31/17) 

 Maryann Graba 

 Anna Apitz 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that as there were more individuals than open positions for the Park and 

Recreation Commission, he asked that the City Council follow the appointment procedure outlined in Section 

30.01(E) of the City Code. He explained that each member of the City Council, mayor included, rank their top 

candidate with the number one and place a number two by their second choice. He stated that the ballots would 

be collected and record the totals on the board.  He stated the highest scoring candidate will be appointed. 

 

Mayor Hansen asked if both applicants could be appointed since it is difficult to recruit members to the 

Commission.  Administrator Buchholtz explained that the Council can adopt an Ordinance to increase the size 

of the Park and Recreation Commission, allowing both candidates to serve.   

 

Administrator Buchholtz suggested the Park and Recreation Commission appointment be tabled until the next 

Council meeting to allow time for staff to draft an ordinance increasing the size of the Commission. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPOINT HANS HANSEN TO THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION AND TO TABLE THE PARK AND RECREATION APPOINTMENTS UNTIL NEXT 

COUNCIL MEETING.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

12.  Engineer’s Report 

 

Engineer Gravel reported that Visu-Sewer, the contractor for the 2015 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project, has 

completed the final lining. Public Works Director Randall has reviewed the inspection televising tapes and 

determined which service wyes need to be grouted. 

 

Mr. Gravel reported that he is working on bid documents for the 2016 Street Seal Coat Project and permits for 

the reconstruction on Lift Station No. 1 are being processed. He reported that maintenance on the well is being 

performed and a camera will be lowered into the well to see what work needs to be completed.  

 

Mr. Gravel reported that he attended the Osborne Road Open House. He stated that Anoka County is exploring 

alternatives and gathering information to the improvements to Osborne Road.  He stated that there was not a 

lot of discussion on the trail reconstruction. He stated that another informational meeting will be held in the 

August. 

 

A.  2016 Update on Municipal State Aid Account 

 

Engineer Gravel provided an update on the City’s Municipal State Aid Account. He reported that in January 

the Office of State Aid announced the 2016 Maintenance and Construction Allotments for the MSAS cities as 

approved by the Commission of transportation. He reported that the City of Spring Lake Park received an 

allocation of $176,127 and maintenance allocation of $58,709. He stated that the total allocation is $234,836. 

He stated that the total allocation is $24,159, more than 2014 and the 2014 total was $6,593 more than 2013. 

 

Mr. Gravel reported that reimbursements requests have been submitted to State Aid for previous State Aid 

eligible projects (including the 2014-2015 Street Improvement project) He stated the current total pending 

reimbursed amount in the State Aid system is about $1,151,000.  He stated that it means that for the next six or 

seven years the City will receive the construction portion of their State Aid allocation without needing to submit 

any additional reimbursement requests. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 February 16, 2016 

 

13.  Attorney’s Report - None 

 

14.  Other 

 

A.  Administrator Report 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the space needs analysis at city hall has started. He reported that he and 

Department Head staff met with the consultant to review the needs of the building and staff. He stated that there 

will be another meeting to review the findings and to review feedback. 

 

15.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER NASH TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:23 P.M. 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

 

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 









 





 





 





















 





 























MEMORANDUM  

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

APPOINTMENTS 

FEBRUARY 22, 2016 

At the February 16 meeting, the City Council directed staff to draft an ordinance amending Chapter 

31 of the City Code relating to the size of the Parks and Recreation Commission. 

Ordinance 424 amends the code to allow for a Commission that is not less than seven members and 

not more than nine members.  Staff is also recommending removing the requirement that members 

must be residents of the City and must consist of at least two men and two women.  This will grant 

the City Council more discretion in appointing future members of the Commission as the City 
Council can look at not only residents, but individuals who work in the city and active volunteers 

with Recreation programs.  Staff also recommended adding language stating that the members of 

the Commission serve at the pleasure of the Council.  This language change is consistent with 
language for the Planning Commission. 

The newly created positions will create new terms in 2016 and 2018.  Staff would recommend the 

newly appointed individuals serve in the 2017 and 2018 open positions. 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



 



ORDINANCE NO. 424 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 31 OF THE SPRING LAKE PARK CODE 
OR ORDINANCE RELATED TO THE SIZE OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION 

COMMISSION 
 

The City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, ordains as follows: 
 
Section 1. Chapter 31 shall hereby be amended to read as follows: 
 
 § 31.16  COMPOSITION. 
 

The Commission shall consist of not less than seven and not more than nine 
members, all being residents of the city, and must consist of at least two men and 
two women.  The Commission will also consist of the Parks and Recreation 
Director and a CouncilmemberCommissioner.  Members shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Council. 
 
§ 31.17  TERMS. 
 
Appointment shall be made at the first regular January meeting of the City 
Council.  Members shall be appointed for three-year terms, beginning January 1 
and ending December 31 of the third year following.  Initial appointment shall be 
as follows: twothree members appointed for terms of one year; twothree members 
appointed for terms of two years; and three members appointed for terms of three 
years.  Members may serve for more than one term by reappointment by the 
Council. 
 

 
Section 2. This Ordinance shall have full force and effect upon its passage and publication 
 
 
Passed by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park, Minnesota, this 7th day of March 
2016. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Cindy Hansen, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



 



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

 

 

TO: MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENTS 

DATE: FEBRUARY 22, 2016 
 
 

 

 
Upon passage and publication of Ordinance 424, there are up to three openings on the Parks and 

Recreation Commission.  The City Council has received applications from two individuals for the 

openings. 
 

Staff recommends the following appointments: 

 

Parks and Recreation Commission (unexpired portion of 3 year term; term expired 12/31/17) 

 Anna Apitz 

 

Parks and Recreation Commission (term expires 12/31/18) 

 Maryann Graba 

 
One opening remains on the Commission, which term would expire on 12/31/16.  If we receive an 

application for the position, we will bring the name forward for Council consideration. 

 

If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



 



RESOLUTION NO. 16-06 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AND SITE PLAN 

APPROVAL FOR EMMANUEL CHRISTIAN CENTER, 7777 UNIVERSITY AVENUE 

NE, SPRING LAKE PARK 

 

 

WHEREAS, Emmanuel Christian Center submitted application for Conditional Use 

Permit and Site Plan approval to the City of Spring Lake Park on February 5, 2016 for an addition 

to Emmanuel Christian Center at 7777 University Avenue NE; and 

 

WHEREAS, the legal description of 7777 University Avenue NE is listed in Appendix A 

of this Resolution; and  

 

WHEREAS, said expansion is an 8,800 square foot atrium/entry addition on the 

front/south side, small additions to the west side and modifications to the parking lot and 

driveways; and 

 

 WHEREAS, churches are allowed by Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in the C-3, Office 

Commercial, zoning district; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Spring Lake Park Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing 

on February 22, 2016 to hear public testimony and the CUP application; and 

 

 WHEREAS, upon Planning and Zoning Commission review of the application, the 

Stantec report of February 22, 2016 and public testimony, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the CUP application subject to the conditions outlined in the February 

22, 2016 Stantec report and a condition that further study be completed by the applicant on the 

proposed Terrace Road driveway on the southeast corner of the property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Spring Lake Park City Council has reviewed the application and agrees 

with the findings and recommendation of the Spring Lake Park Planning and Zoning Commission 

and City staff, as outlined in the Stantec report to the City Council dated March 7, 2016. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council hereby approves the CUP and site plan applications 

for the Emmanuel Christian Center Addition with the following conditions: 

 

1. Applicant will provide copies of approval from Anoka County for work at the front 

entry drive onto Osborne Road. 

2. Applicant will provide pre- and post-construction runoff information as noted the 

Stantec report dated March 7, 2016. 

3. Applicant will provide information on maintenance of the on-side pond as noted in 

the Stantec report dated March 7, 2016. 



4. Applicant will provide the City a copy of the permit approval from Coon Creek 

Watershed District.  Should pond storage and treatment volume be found to be 

inadequate, applicant shall upgrade the pond accordingly. 

5. The bituminous trail along Osborne Road will be reconstructed between Terrace 

Road and the Osborne Road main entrance to Emmanuel Christian Center based on 

a review of its condition and the recommendation and approval of the City 

Engineer. 

6. The City Engineer and consultants for the applicant will review traffic analysis and 

traffic operations in and around the Emmanuel Christian Center site to determine 

the appropriateness of the proposed southeast entry drive to Terrace Road.  The 

driveway will be allowed if, in the opinion of the City Engineer, it will operate 

safely and efficiently, and only after plans for its construction are approved by the 

City Engineer. 

7. A six (6) foot wide sidewalk will be provided along the east side of the main entry 

drive, with crosswalks and handicap ramps, connecting bikes and pedestrians to the 

entry and patio at the southeast corner of the building.  Bike racks for at least six 

bicycles will be provided.  Striping will be provided where the Osborne Road trail 

crosses at the Emmanuel Christian Center driveway.  These plans will be reviewed 

and approved by the City Engineer before construction. 

8. A short stub of sidewalk will be added in the northeast corner of the Emmanuel 

Christian Center site to connect the existing sidewalk on the west side of Terrace 

Road into the church parking lot.  Plans shall be reviewed and approved by the City 

Engineer prior to construction. 

9. The SBM Fire Department must sign off on hydrant coverage before construction. 

10. Applicant must secure approval from the Public Works Director before doing any 

work in the Terrace Road right-of-way. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Stantec Planning Reports, dated February 22, 2016 and 

March 7, 2016 shall be incorporated into this resolution by reference. 

 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:   

 

And the following voted against the same:   

 

  



 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 7th day of March, 2016. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

  



APPENDIX A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

 

That part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter lying West of the East 639 feet 

thereof, Section 2, Township 30, Range 24, Anoka County, Minnesota, except the North 730 feet 

thereof. (PID 02-30-24-34-0003) 

 

That part of the East 639 feet of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 2, 

Township 30, Range 24, lying southerly of a line described as follows: Commencing at the 

Southeast corner of said Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter; thence North along the East 

line of said Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter a distance of 587 feet to the point of 

beginning; thence West at right angles a distance of 639 feet and there terminating. (PID 02-30-

24-34-0005) 



 

 

 

PLANNING REPORT 

Date: March 7, 2016 

To:  Spring Lake Park City Council     

From: Phil Carlson, AICP, Consulting Planner 

Project: Emmanuel Christian Center Addition – Conditional Use Permit 

 7777 University Avenue NE 

 

BACKGROUND & REQUEST 

Emmanuel Christian Center (ECC) is applying for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an addition 

to the church building and modifications to the parking lot and access drives. The Planning 

Commission reviewed their request at their meeting on February 22 and recommended 

approval with conditions.  

Most of the information and analysis in our February 22, 2016 Planning Report to the Planning 

Commission is still applicable, except as modified in this report.  

The existing building is shown in light blue below, the additions in orange. A new driveway 

entrance into the property is proposed at the southeast corner of the site off Terrace Road. 

 

 

 

  



Spring Lake Park  

City Council  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP March 7, 2016  2 

 

 

 

 

DISCUSSION 

Since the Planning Commission meeting, staff and consultants have discussed a number of issues 

related to ECC’s plans. 

 New SE Entry Drive. There was discussion at the Planning Commission meeting whether 

the proposed new access drive to Terrace Road was a good idea or not. An analysis of 

traffic patterns and church membership may shed light on the issue. Rather than take the 

time to conduct an analysis before City Council action, we suggest that the City 

Engineer be authorized to approve the driveway if in his opinion if will operate safely and 

efficiently, or deny it if the analysis shows it to be problematic. The proposed driveway is 

illustrated below. 

 

 

  

Proposed New 

SE Driveway 



Spring Lake Park  

City Council  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP March 7, 2016  3 

 

 

 

 Pedestrian/bicycle access – main entry drive. Pedestrian and bicycle access is 

important, and we suggest that a sidewalk be provided along the east side of the main 

entry drive, with crosswalks and handicap ramps, connecting bikes and pedestrians to 

the entry and patio at southeast corner of the building. Bike racks for at least six bicycles 

should be provided as well. This is illustrated below. We discussed reconstruction of the 

Osborne Road trail and suggested the church connect the existing path on the berm 

near the front entry drive to the Osborne Road trail. The church may remove this short 

path and therefore we do not believe connecting it to the Osborn Road trail is 

necessary. Striping should also be provided where the Osborne Road trail crosses the 

ECC driveway. 

 

  



Spring Lake Park  

City Council  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP March 7, 2016  4 

 

 

 

 Sidewalk connection – NE corner of ECC site. There is an existing sidewalk on the west 

side of Terrace Road (adjacent to Terrace Park), north of the ECC site. We suggest a 

short stub of sidewalk be added to connect this existing sidewalk into the church parking 

lot as illustrated below. Extending into the ECC site is not necessary, given the limited 

amount of bike/ped traffic that is expected. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the CUP with seven conditions. We 

recommend that the City Council approve the Conditional Use Permit for Emmanuel Christian 

Center as submitted with the following conditions, based on the original seven Planning 

Commission conditions, with changes noted in underline for additions and strikeout for deletions: 

1) Applicant will provide copies of approval from Anoka County for work at the front entry 

drive onto Osborne Road. 

2) Applicant will provide pre- and post-construction runoff information as noted above. 

3) Applicant will provide information on maintenance of the on-site pond as noted above. 

4) Applicant will provide copies of permit approval from Coon Creek Watershed District. 

Should pond storage and treatment volume be found to be inadequate, applicant 

agrees to upgrade the pond accordingly. 

5) The bituminous trail along Osborne Road will be reconstructed between Terrace Road 

and the ECC main entry drive University Avenue based on a review of its condition and 



Spring Lake Park  

City Council  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP March 7, 2016  5 

 

 

 

the recommendation and approval of the City Engineer and connected to the internal 

path near the entry drive. 

 

6) The City Engineer and consultants for the applicant will review traffic analysis and traffic 

operations in and around the ECC site to determine the appropriateness of the 

proposed southeast entry drive to Terrace Road. The driveway will be allowed if in the 

opinion of the City Engineer it will operate safely and efficiently, and only after plans for 

its construction are approved by the City Engineer. 

 

7) A 6-foot-wide sidewalk will be provided along the east side of the main entry drive, with 

crosswalks and handicap ramps, connecting bikes and pedestrians to the entry and 

patio at southeast corner of the building. Bike racks for at least six bicycles will be 

provided. Striping will be provided where the Osborne Road trail crosses the ECC 

driveway. These plans will be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer before 

construction. 

8) A short stub of sidewalk will be added in the northeast corner of the ECC site to connect 

the existing sidewalk on the west side of Terrace Road into the church parking lot, to be 

reviewed and approved by the City Engineer before construction begins. 

9) Fire Department must sign off on hydrant coverage before construction. 

10) Applicant must have approval from City Public Works Director before doing any work in 

the Terrace Road right-of-way. 





DRAFT PROCEEDINGS 

 

Minutes of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission meeting held on February 22, 2016 at the  

Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Chairperson Smith called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Commissioners Bernhagen, Dircks, Eischens, Hansen and Smith 

 

Members Absent: Commissioners Raymond and Strawn 

 

Staff Present: Planner Carlson; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant 

Gooden  

 

Visitors:   Steve Fellows, 10604 Madison Street NE, Blaine 

    Dorothy Johnson, 340 Osborne Road, Fridley 

    Ann Kuntz, Station Nineteen Architects, 2001 University Ave SE,  

    Minneapolis 

    Gordie Schmitz, 12117 3rd Street NE, Blaine 

     

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Approval of Minutes – January 25, 2016 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, 

APPROVING THE MINUTES OF JANUARY 25, 2016 AS SUBMITTED.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL 

AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

5.  Public Hearing – Conditional Use Permit Application for Emmanuel Christian Center Addition 

 

Chairperson Smith opened the public hearing at 7:03 PM to consider a Conditional Use Permit Application 

for Emmanuel Christian Center Addition. 

 

City Planner Carlson reported that Emanuel Christian Center (ECC) is an existing church on a 17.2-acre 

site fronting Osborne Road at 7777 University Avenue NE.  He stated that the original church was built in 

1980’s, and the site and building have been added onto and remodeled several times since.  He stated that 

ECC is applying for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to expand and remodel the building and site with an 

8,800-square–foot atrium/entry addition on the front/south side, small additions on the west side, and 

modifications to the parking lot and driveways.  He stated a new driveway entrance into the property is 

proposed at the southeast corner of the site off Terrace Road. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that the property is guided Public/Semi-Public in the comprehensive plan.  He stated 

that the property is zoned C-3 Office Commercial and “Assembly uses, including auditoriums, religious 

and philanthropic uses” are a Conditional Use in the C-3 District. 

 

 

 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 February 22, 2016 
 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that neighboring uses include: 

 A small commercial center abutting the property to the southwest, including a grocery/tobacco 

store, an optical shop, and a medical supply company. 

 Unity Hospital across Osborne Road to the south. 

 University Avenue to the west. 

 Northtown Village apartments to the north. 

 Terrace Park to the north. 

 Spring Crest Estate townhouses to the east across Terrace Road. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that the building additions meet all setbacks. The building height additions meet the 35-

foot height limit in the code. He stated the proposed steel cross on the south side is about 48 feet tall, but 

the code allows height limitations to be increased by 100% by a CUP for “ornamental towers and spires”. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that the proposed changes to the parking lot will improve circulation and safety in the 

parking lot. He stated new parking lots islands meet the new zoning code standards. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that seven trees are proposed to be removed from the existing berm along Osborne 

Road near the main driveway entry and replaced with lower landscaping in order to improve visibility to 

the main building entry. He stated that there will still be adequate screening of headlights to Osborne Road 

with the berm in place. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that the new main entry drive is being re-striped and islands in the area are being 

revised to prove more clarity for drivers. He stated that the current situation does not indicate clear left and 

right turn exiting lanes onto Osborne Road, whereas the proposed design does. The proposed design 

provides clearer land and turn markings for drivers in front of the new addition.  He stated that the applicant 

needs to provide copies of a site plan approval from the Anoka County Highway Department. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that the applicants have provided information on the site plans indicating that 29 parking 

spaces that will be removed as a result of the site modifications, but total parking on site still exceeds what 

is required by code.  He stated that parking spaces on the north half of the site are being re-striped to allow 

east-west versus north-south. He stated the plan shows the following numbers: 

 980 required stalls by code 

 1,109 existing stalls 

 1,080 proposed stalls 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that required parking is calculated based on: 

 One parking space/five feet of pew in the main auditorium and senior high space; 1/100 square feet 

of floor area in the new atrium and student auditorium = 869 stalls 

 Five senior high classrooms, 1.5/room; 12 youth classrooms, 2/room=32 stalls 

 13,500 square feet office space at four per 1,000 square feet = 54 stalls 

 Nursery/day care at one per employee =25 stalls 

 Total: 980 stalls 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that a new driveway is proposed into the site at the southeast corner of the parking lot 

off Terrace Road. He stated that there is also an existing driveway access to Terrace Road at the northeast 

corner. He stated that driveway could likely improve traffic conditions at the main entry off Osborne Road 

by handling traffic coming to and from the east and keeping it out of the main entry.  He stated the applicant 

may have estimates on the proportion of church members who might logically come from the east on 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 February 22, 2016 
 

 

Osborne Road. The applicant must contact the City Public Works Director before doing any work in the 

city right-of-way.  He stated the proposed driveway connection must be built in accordance with city 

standards and is subject to approval of the Public Works Director. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that there is an existing bituminous trail along Osborne Road in front of the church and 

the adjacent commercial properties, one of which is owned by ECC as well. He stated that the trail in poor 

condition. He explained that there is a short segment of path on the berm near the main entry drive that 

extends from the parking lot to a bench and trees, but that path is not connected to the Osborne Road trail.  

He stated the City’s Comprehensive Plan promotes pedestrian and bike access throughout the city.  He said 

to allow and encourage this access, it would be appropriate both to reconstruct the trail and connect the path 

to it.  Administrator Buchholtz reminded the Commission that this recommendation is consistent with 

conditions that have those that have been placed on other recent CUP applications. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that the changes to the front of the building and parking area will require minor 

modifications to the site and drainage to the pond on site.  He stated that applicant needs to provide pre- 

and post-construction runoff information to verify that the site runoff will not increase as a result of the 

project.  The applicant also needs to provide copies of review documents from the Coon Creek Watershed 

District.  The City of Spring Lake Park Storm Water Management Plan requires private storm water 

management facilities to be maintained by the owner.  He stated the applicant needs to provide evidence 

that routine maintenance has occurred on the on-site storm water pond. Evidence of maintenance includes 

certification that the original pond storage and treatment volume has not been impacted.  He stated that 

maintenance evidence also includes documentation that the pipes in and out of the pond are still in 

satisfactory condition. 

 

Mr. Carlson reported that exterior lighting will remain essentially as it is now. He explained that two fixtures 

and poles in front of the new atrium will be taken down and reinstalled very near their existing locations 

and all others will remain where they are. He stated the Fire Department needs to review the fire hydrant 

coverage for the site. 

 

Mr. Carlson stated that staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit for Emmanuel Christian 

Center as submitted with the following conditions: 

 1.  Applicant will provide copies of approval from Anoka County for work at the front entry drive   

                   onto Osborne Road. 

 2.  Applicant will provide pre- and post – construction runoff information as noted above. 

 3.  Applicant will provide information on maintenance of the on-site pond as noted above. 

 4.  Applicant will provide copies of permit approve from Coon Creek Watershed District. 

 5.  The bituminous trail along Osborne Road will be reconstructed between Terrace Road and  

                   University Avenue and connected to the internal path near the entry drive. 

 6.   Fire Department must sign off on hydrant coverage before construction. 

 7.  Applicant must have approval from City Public Works Director before doing any work in the  

                  Terrace Road right-of-way. 

 

Chairperson Smith inquired if the property was part of the Rice Creek Watershed or the Coon Creek 

Watershed District. Administrator Buchholtz stated that the ECC property is in the Coon Creek Watershed 

District. 

 

Commissioner Eischens inquired if new signage will be placed for traffic that will be entering and existing 

on the new proposed driveway. Planner Carlson stated that the plans did not show any new signage.    

Ann Kuntz, Station Nineteen Representative, stated that there are no plans for new signage as the portion 

of the lot has parking spaces. 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 February 22, 2016 
 

 

Chairperson Smith expressed his concern with the egress onto Terrace Road. He feels that it is too close to 

Osborne Road and could cause congestion.  He suggested that the southeast egress be moved away from 

Osborne Road. 

 

Chairperson Smith inquired on responsibility of the road and signage near the Northtown Apartments. 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that it is privately maintained and is not designed for traffic generated by 

ECC. 

 

Chairperson Smith stated that he feels that requiring maintenance records for existing pond is an excellent 

idea. Administrator Buchholtz stated that there could be many pre and post runoff and sediment deposits 

within the pond so it might be necessary to drudge the pond and remove any silt deposits and rebuild the 

pond structure back to original contours. 

 

Chairperson Smith inquired on the existing business on Osborne Road in front of the church property. 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the specific property that he is speaking of has been annexed into the 

City of Spring Lake Park and it is his understanding that ECC has a purchase agreement with the business 

owner of the strip mall but not the Jiffy Lube establishment. Ms. Kuntz stated that ECC does not own the 

strip mall at this time. 

 

Ms. Kuntz stated that the bike trail on the berm in front of the ECC property is in poor condition and there 

is still discussion taking place as to whether or not it will be replaced or removed. She stated that the existing 

trees have become overgrown and new plantings are being planned to add more color and attractiveness. 

 

Commissioner Hansen inquired as to how much the capacity of the building will increase by. Ms. Kuntz 

stated that the new additions will be used as multipurpose space and fellowship space. She stated that it will 

not increase the capacity in numbers but allow more room to spread out and allow for a venue space for a 

smaller event such as a funeral or wedding. 

 

Commissioner Dircks inquired if the pedestrian path is removed, how will cyclists and pedestrians enter 

into the driveway safely.  Ms. Kuntz stated that the issue needs to be discussed with ECC to see what will 

be the safest option. 

 

Chairperson Smith called for additional public feedback.  Hearing none, Chairperson Smith closed the 

public hearing at 7:40 PM. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY DIRCKS TO CLOSE THE 

PUBLIC HEARING. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

Planner Carlson suggested that if the conditions of the CUP are met he suggested that the traffic flow be 

monitored for a safe and efficient flow. Administrator Buchholtz suggested that analysis of the traffic on 

Osborne Road and Terrace Road be made. The consensus of the Commission was to have the analysis done 

by City Engineering staff. 

 

MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECONDED BY DIRCKS TO APPROVE A 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION FOR EMMANUEL CHRISTIAN CENTER ADDITION 

WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 1.) APPLICANT WILL PROVIDE COPIES OF APPROVAL 

FROM ANOKA COUNTY FOR WORK AT THE FRONT ENTRY DRIVE ONTO OSBORNE ROAD. 

2.) APPLICANT WILL PROVIDE PRE- AND POST – CONSTRUCTION RUNOFF INFORMATION 

AS NOTED ABOVE. 3.)  APPLICANT WILL PROVIDE INFORMATION ON MAINTENANCE OF 

THE ON-SITE POND AS NOTED ABOVE. 4.) APPLICANT WILL PROVIDE COPIES OF PERMIT 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 February 22, 2016 
 

 

APPROVE FROM COON CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT. 5.)  THE BITUMINOUS TRAIL ALONG 

OSBORNE ROAD WILL BE RECONSTRUCTED BETWEEN TERRACE ROAD AND UNIVERSITY 

AVENUE AND CONNECTED TO THE INTERNAL PATH NEAR THE ENTRY DRIVE. 6.) FIRE 

DEPARTMENT MUST SIGN OFF ON HYDRANT COVERAGE BEFORE CONSTRUCTION. 

 7.)  APPLICANT MUST HAVE APPROVAL FROM CITY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR BEFORE 

DOING ANY WORK IN THE TERRACE ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. 

MOTION CARRIED. 

 

6.  Other 

 

a. Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that an open house was held for the Osborne Road Construction project. 

He stated that he would provide the handout information and comments from the open house to the 

Commissioners.  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City Council approved the hiring of a space needs analysis 

consultant for City Hall.  He reported that the consultant will review the shortcomings of the current 

building and make suggestions as to what will bring the building up date and building code. 

 

Chairperson Smith inquired as to how the new Public Works garage space is working out for staff and the 

City.  Administrator Buchholtz stated that the staff is thrilled with their new building and have done many 

improvements to the building to allow them to work on equipment and store much of the equipment indoors. 

He stated that it was a welcomed addition to the City. He added that it is the City’s intent to tear down the 

existing barbershop.  

 

7. Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER DIRCKS, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN TO 

ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M. 





 

 

 

PLANNING REPORT 

Date: February 22, 2016 

To:  Spring Lake Park Planning Commission 

From: Phil Carlson, AICP, Consulting Planner 

Project: Emmanuel Christian Center Addition – Conditional Use Permit 

 

BACKGROUND & REQUEST 

Emmanuel Christian Center (ECC) is an existing church on a 17.2-acre site fronting Osborne 

Road at 7777 University Avenue NE.  The original church was built in the 1980s, and the site and 

building have been added onto and remodeled several times since. Churches are allowed by 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP – formerly called Special Use Permit (SUP) in the recently revised 

zoning code). ECC is applying for a CUP to expand and remodel the building and site with an 

8,800-square-foot atrium/entry addition on the front/south side, small additions on the west side, 

and modifications to the parking lot and driveways. The existing building is shown in light blue 

below, the additions in orange. A new driveway entrance into the property is proposed at the 

southeast corner of the site off Terrace Road. 



Spring Lake Park  

Planning Commission  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP February 22, 2016  2 

 

 

 

 The property is guided Public/Semi-Public in the comprehensive plan. 

 The property is zoned C-3 Office Commercial. “Assembly uses, including auditoriums, 

religious and philanthropic uses” are a Conditional Use in the C-3 District. 

 

 Neighboring uses include: 

o A small commercial center abutting the property to the southwest, including a 

grocery/tobacco store, an optical shop, and a medical supply company. 

o Unity Hospital across Osborne Road to the south. 

o University Avenue to the west. 

o Northtown Village apartments to north. 

o Terrace Park to the north.  

o Spring Crest Estates townhouses to the east across Terrace Road. 

 

  



Spring Lake Park  

Planning Commission  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP February 22, 2016  3 

 

 

 

ANALYSIS 

1) Setbacks: The building additions meet all setbacks.  

2) Height: The building additions meet the 35-foot height limit in the code. The proposed 

steel cross on the south side is about 48 feet tall, but the code allows height limitations to 

be increased by 100% with a CUP for “ornamental towers and spires”.  

3)  

4) Parking lot islands: The proposed changes to the parking lot will improve circulation and 

safety in the parking lot. New parking lot islands meet the new zoning code standards.  

5) Landscaping: Seven trees are proposed to be removed from the existing berm along 

Osborne Road near the main driveway entry, replaced with lower landscaping, in order 

to improve visibility to the main building entry. There is still adequate screening of 

headlights to Osborne Road with the berm in place. 

^ . . .    Trees to be removed   . . . ^ 

Front Entrance – view to NW 

South Elevation – Partial 

Cross – 48’ ht 

New building addition – 35’ ht 



Spring Lake Park  

Planning Commission  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP February 22, 2016  4 

 

 

 

6) Traffic/Main Entry: The new main entry drive is being re-striped and islands in the area are 

being revised to provide more clarity for drivers. The current situation does not indicate 

clear left and right turn exiting lanes onto Osborne Road, whereas the proposed design 

does. Also, the proposed design provides clearer lane and turn markings for drivers in 

front of the new addition. See partial site plans below. The applicant needs to provide 

copies of site plan approval from the Anoka County Highway Department. 

 

7) Parking: The applicants have provided information on the site plans indicating that 29 

parking spaces will be removed as a result of the site modifications, but total parking on 

site still exceeds what is required by code. Parking spaces on the north half of the site are 

being re-striped to flow east-west vs. north-south. The plans show the following numbers: 

o    980 required stalls by code 

o 1,109 existing stalls 

o 1,080 proposed stalls 

 

Required parking is calculated based on: 

o 1 parking space/5 feet of pew in the main auditorium and senior high space; 

1/100 sq ft of floor area in the new atrium and student auditorium = 869 stalls 

o 5 senior high classrooms, 1.5/room; 12 youth classrooms, 2/room = 32 stalls 

o 13,500 sq ft of office space at 4 per 1,000 sq ft = 54 stalls 

o Nursery/day care at 1 per employee = 25 stalls 

o Total: 980 stalls 

Existing  Proposed  



Spring Lake Park  

Planning Commission  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP February 22, 2016  5 

 

 

 

Proposed New 

SE Driveway 

8) Traffic/New SE Entry: A new driveway is proposed into the site at the southeast corner of 

the parking lot off Terrace Road (there is also an exisitng driveway access to Terrace 

Road at the northeast corner). This driveway could likely improve traffic conditions at the 

main entry off Osborne by handling traffic coming to and from the east (orange lines) 

and keeping it out of the main entry (blue lines). The applicant may have estimates on 

the proportion of church members who might logically come from the east on Osborne 

Road. The applicant must contact the City Public Works Director before doing any work 

in the city right-of-way. The proposed driveway connection must be built in accordance 

with city standards and is subject to approval of the Public Works Director.  

 

9) Pedestrian/bicycle access: There is an existing bituminous trail along Osborne Road in 

front of the church and the adjacent commercial properties, one of which is owned by 

ECC as well. The trail is in poor condition. There is a short segment of path on the berm 

near the main entry drive that extends from the parking lot to a bench and trees, but 

that path is not connected to the Osborne trail. The city’s comprehensive plan promotes 

pedestrian and bike access throughout the city. To allow and encourage this access, it 

would be appropriate both to reconstruct the trail and connect the path to it.  

 



Spring Lake Park  

Planning Commission  

Emmanuel Christian Center  Addition – CUP February 22, 2016  6 

 

 

 

10) Grading/Drainage: The changes to the front of the building and parking area will require 

minor modifications to the site and drainage to the pond on site. The applicant needs to 

provide pre- and post-construction runoff information to verify that the site runoff will not 

increase as a result of the project. The applicant also needs to provide copies of review 

documents from the Coon Creek Watershed District. The City of Spring Lake Park Storm 

Water Management Plan requires private storm water management facilities to be 

maintained by the owner.  The applicant needs to provide evidence that routine 

maintenance has occurred on the on-site stormwater pond.  Evidence of maintenance 

includes verification that the original pond storage and treatment volume has not been 

impacted.  Maintenance evidence also includes documentation that the pipes in and 

out of the pond are still in satisfactory condition.       

11) Lighting: Exterior lighting will remain essentially as it is now. Two fixtures and poles in front 

of the new atrium will be taken down and reinstalled very near their existing locations. All 

others remain where they are.  

12) Fire protection: The Fire Department needs to review the fire hydrant coverage for the 

site. 

13) Section 153.202(E)(1) of the Zoning Code provides the criteria for reviewing a Conditional 

Use Permit. These are listed and discussed in the applicant’s narrative. The proposed use 

meets those criteria in the code. 

RECOMMENDATION 

We recommend that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Conditional Use 

Permit for Emmanuel Christian Center as submitted with the following conditions: 

1) Applicant will provide copies of approval from Anoka County for work at the front entry 

drive onto Osborne Road. 

2) Applicant will provide pre- and post-construction runoff information as noted above. 

3) Applicant will provide information on maintenance of the on-site pond as noted above. 

4) Applicant will provide copies of permit approval from Coon Creek Watershed District. 

5) The bituminous trail along Osborne Road will be reconstructed between Terrace Road 

and University Avenue and connected to the internal path near the entry drive.   

6) Fire Department must sign off on hydrant coverage before construction. 

7) Applicant must have approval from City Public Works Director before doing any work in 

the Terrace Road right-of-way. 







 
               
 

 
 
 
February 5, 2016 City Submission 
 
PID#’s and Legal Description for: 
 
Emmanuel Christian Center 
7777 University Avenue NE 
Spring Lake Park, MN   55432 
 
 
That part of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter lying West of the East 639 feet thereof, Section 2, 
Township 30, Range 24, Anoka County, Minnesota, except the North 730 feet thereof.    (PID 02-30-24-34-0003) 
  
That part of the East 639 feet of the Southeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 2, Township 30, 
Range 24, lying southerly of a line described as follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Southeast 
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter; thence North along the East line of said Southeast Quarter of the Southwest 
Quarter a distance of 587 feet to the point of beginning; thence West at right angles a distance of 639 feet and 
there terminating.  (PID 02-30-24-34-0005) 
  
  
Lot 1, Block 1, OSBORNE PLAZA, according to the recorded plat thereof, Anoka County, Minnesota. (PID 11-30-
24-21-0069) 
  
Lot 2, Block 1, OSBORNE PLAZA, according to the recorded plat thereof, Anoka County, Minnesota. (PID 11-30-
24-21-0070) 
 
 

STATION NINETEEN 
ARCHITECTS, INC. 

 2001 UNIVERSITY AVENUE SOUTHEAST SUITE 100 
MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA 55414 

612-623-1800  
WWW.STATION19.COM  





City of Spring Lake Park 
Conditional Use Permit Worksheet 

 
A conditional use permit cannot be approved unless the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City 

Council make certain findings and recommendations.  Please provide a response on how/why your project 

meets the below stated criteria.  Use additional sheets if necessary.  If some items are not applicable for 

your project, write N/A.  Contact the Zoning Administrator with any questions. 

1. That the proposed use at the particular location requested is necessary or desirable to provide a 

service or a facility which is in the interest of public convenience and will contribute to the 

general welfare of the neighborhood or community.      

            

            

             

2. That the use will not be detrimental to the health, safety, morals, or general welfare of persons 

residing or working in the vicinity of the use or injurious to property values/improvements 

within the vicinity of the use.         

            

            

             

3. That the proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in Chapter 153 of the Zoning 

Code.            

            

            

             

4. That the proposed use shall not have a detrimental effect on the use and enjoyment of other 

property in the immediate vicinity.        

            

            

             

  

The proposed addition will provide additional gathering and fellowship space relieving internal 
congestion of existing hallways.   
Site modifications will improve traffic flow from and onto Osborne Road and improve safety 
within the parking lot.

There will be no change to the overall use of the property to persons in the vicinity.

The proposed use complies with the Zoning Code as an approved Conditional Use.

The proposed addition and site upgrades will have no detrimental effect on the surrounding 
property.



City of Spring Lake Park  Conditional Use Permit Worksheet 

Page | 2  
 

 

5. That the use will not lower property values or impact scenic views in the surrounding area. 

            

            

            

             

6. That existing utilities, streets, highways and proposed access roads will be adequate to 

accommodate anticipated traffic.        

            

            

             

7. That the use includes adequate protection for the natural drainage system and natural 

topography.           

            

            

             

8. That the proposed use includes adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, 

dust, noise or vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance.    

            

            

             

9. That the proposed use will not stimulate growth incompatible with prevailing density standards. 

            

            

            

             

 

The proposed addition and upgrades will have no impact to views in the surrounding area.

There will be minimal to no change to traffic due to the proposed addition and parking lot 
changes.  The existing infrastructure will be adequate.

There will be minimal to no change to drainage.  

There will be no change to odor, fumes, dust and noise levels.

The proposed addition will cause no change to the prevailing density standards.



ARCHITECTURAL

A0.1 MAIN LEVEL CODE PLAN
A0.2 UPPER LEVEL CODE PLAN
A2.1 MAIN LEVEL DEMO PLAN
A2.2 UPPER LEVEL DEMO PLAN
A6.1 BUILDING ELEVATIONS

EMMANUEL CHRISTIAN CENTER
SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA

DESIGN DEVELOPMENT

T1.1 TITLE SHEET

PROJECT TEAM
ARCHITECT
Station 19 Architects, Inc.
2001 University Ave. S.E. Suite 100
Minneapolis, MN 55414
PH:(612) 623-1800
FAX:(612) 623-0012

CIVIL ENGINEER
Rehder & Associates, Inc.
3440 Federal Drive, Suite 110
Eagan, MN 55122
PH: (651) 452-5051
FAX: (651) 452-9797

LANDSCAPE 
Solution Blue, Inc.
318 Cedar Street
SainT Paul, MN 55101
PH: (651) 294-0038

ELECTRICAL
EMANUELSON-PODAS, INC.
10401 BREN ROAD EAST
MINNETONKA, MN 55343
PH: (952) 540-4038

LOCATION MAP

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
VE

 N
E

OSBORNE RD NE

694

CIVIL

BOUNDARY & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
C1 SITE DEMOLITION PLAN
C2 SITE DIMENSION PLAN
C3 GRADING, DRAINAGE & EROSION CONTROL PLAN
C4 DETAILS & SPECIFICATIONS PLAN

LANDSCAPE

L1.1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
L1.2 LANDSCAPE DETAILS

ELECTRICAL

PH.1 PHOTOMETRIC PLAN
PH.2 SITE LIGHTING CUT SHEETS

EMMANUEL CHRISTIAN CENTER
7777 UNIVERSITY AVE NE
SPRING LAKE PARK, MN 55432

1
A8.1

AL
-1

H
M

-1

GRID LINE

INTERIOR WALL TYPE

DOOR NUMBER
SEE DOOR SCHEDULE

DETAIL SYMBOL
DETAIL NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

EXISTING WALL

ROOM NUMBER

ALUM FRAME TYPE

HOLLOW METAL FRAME TYPE

EXTERIOR WALL TYPE

DASH LINE INDICATES WORK
NOT IN VIEW OF CONCEALED

DOT/DASH LINE INDICATES ITEM
NOT IN CONTRACT

ELEVATION NUMBER

SECTION SYMBOL
DETAIL NUMBER
SHEET NUMBER

SYMBOL LEGEND
1

100
NAME

2
1

A6.1

1

A6.1

10
0

1

MATERIAL SYMBOLS
EARTH

GRANULAR MATERIAL

CONCRETE

CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT

CUT STONE

BRICK

PLASTER OR GYPSUM BOARD

METAL (LARGE SCALE)

SINGLE METAL (SMALL SCALE)

PLYWOOD

WOOD, FINISHED

2X WOOD FRAMING

NON-SIZED WOOD FRAMING

BLANKET INSULATION

ACOUSTIC TILE

RIGID INSULATION

Drawing No.

T1.1

TITLE SHEET

41520

EW,KM,MM

AK

4456

NICOLE THOMPSON

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

SPRING LAKE PARK,

MINNESOTA

EMMANUEL
CHRISTIAN

CENTER

 
NINETEEN

2001 UNIVERSITY
AVENUE SOUTHEAST

SUITE 100

MINNEAPOLIS,
MINNESOTA  55414

PHONE (612) 623.1800
FAX (612) 623.0012

I hearby certify that this plan,
specification, or report was

prepared by me or under my direct
supervision and that I am a duly

Registered Architect under the laws
of the state of:

Architects - Incorporated

PROJECT TITLE

ARCHITECT:

SIGNATURE

REGISTRATION NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

Sheet Title

Project Number

Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic 
files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not 
responsible for any claims, damages or expenses 
arising out of the unauthorized use of the 
information contained in electronic files.

Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final 
design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the 
user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other 
related information.  
This document may not be used or copied without 
prior consent.

©          all rights reserved

Phase

MINNESOTA

STATION

2016

Issue NotesDateNo.

Revision NotesDateNo. Appr

2016

NOT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION

CITY SUBMISSION SET
02/05/2016

























S

e
w

e
r
 
E

a
s
e
m

e
n

t
 
p

e
r
 
D

o

c
u

m

e
n

t

N

o

s
.
 
2

7

5

8

7

3

 
a
n

d

 
2

7

7

0

1

5

S

e

w

e

r

 

E

a

s

e

m

e

n

t

 

p

e

r

 

D

o

c

u

m

e

n

t

N

o

s

.

 

2

8

8

8

9

2

 

a

n

d

 

2

8

8

8

9

3

S

e

w

e

r

 

E

a

s

e

m

e

n

t

 

p

e

r

 

D

o

c

u

m

e

n

t

N

o

s

.

 

2

7

5

8

7

3

 

a

n

d

 

2

7

7

0

1

5

13.00'

21.00'
13.00'

21.54'

©

SBI

N

( IN FEET )

GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
60"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
878

AutoCAD SHX Text
878

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
874

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
878

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
876

AutoCAD SHX Text
878

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"  W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Top 875.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inv. 867.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
Top 872.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inv. 860.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
Top 876.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
Inv. 864.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"  S

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"  S

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"  S

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
Top 875.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSBORNE                                ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
876.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
876.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
876.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
x

AutoCAD SHX Text
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(not found)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Entry

AutoCAD SHX Text
Entry

AutoCAD SHX Text
Entry

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
VENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text
Water Elevation on December 18, 2015 = 873.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADING    ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bench

AutoCAD SHX Text
Paver Sidewalk

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED ISLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD CANOPY/SIGNAGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD CANOPY/SIGNAGE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FUTURE BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15) P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(93) P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(48) P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(9) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(9) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(67) S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(67) S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(187) P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(12) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1) T1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(22) S3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(79) P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(40) P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(16) P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(34) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(122) P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(47) S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(16) S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(17) S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" TALL STEEL EDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" TALL STEEL EDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(9) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(13) P6

AutoCAD SHX Text
(17) P5

AutoCAD SHX Text
(14) P6

AutoCAD SHX Text
(15) P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(21) P3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60) S1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(58) P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(10) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(77) P2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(39) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(12) P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(8) P4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(24) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(5) S2

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" TALL STEEL EDGING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(7) P1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NINETEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2001 UNIVERSITY AVENUE SOUTHEAST SUITE 100 MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA  55414 PHONE (612) 623.1800 FAX (612) 623.0012

AutoCAD SHX Text
I hearby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by me or under my direct  supervision and that I am a duly  Registered Architect under the laws of the state of:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architects - Incorporated

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTRATION NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not responsible for any claims, damages or expenses arising out of the unauthorized use of the information contained in electronic files. Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other related information.   This document may not be used or copied without prior consent.           all rights reserved 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issue Notes

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revision Notes

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Appr

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
4456

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING LAKE PARK,

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMMANUEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRISTIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/12/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/12/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SHEET L1.2 FOR LANDSCAPE NOTES AND PLANTING DETAILS





©

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NTS

3

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

NTS

2

PERENNIAL PLANTING DETAIL

NTS

1

GENERAL NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT THE SITE AND BECOME FAMILIAR WITH EXISTING CONDITIONS

RELATING TO THE NATURE AND SCOPE OF WORK.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY PLAN LAYOUT AND BRING TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT ANY DISCREPANCIES WHICH MAY COMPROMISE THE DESIGN OR INTENT OF THE

LAYOUT.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSURE COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE CODES AND REGULATIONS

GOVERNING THE WORK AND MATERIALS SUPPLIED.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT EXISTING ROADS, CURBS/GUTTERS, WALKWAYS, TREES, LAWNS

AND SITE ELEMENTS DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.  DAMAGE TO SAME SHALL BE

REPAIRED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALIGNMENT AND LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND AND ABOVE

GRADE UTILITIES AND PROVIDE THE NECESSARY PROTECTION FOR SAME BEFORE

CONSTRUCTION BEGINS.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE THE PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION AND PLANTING

INSTALLATION WITH OTHER CONTRACTORS WORKING ON SITE.

7. EXISTING CONTOURS, TRAILS, VEGETATION, CURB/GUTTER AND OTHER ELEMENTS ARE BASED

UPON INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT BY OTHERS.  CONTRACTOR

SHALL VERIFY DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND NOTIFY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

OF SAME.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW THE SITE FOR DEFICIENCIES IN SITE CONDITIONS WHICH MIGHT

NEGATIVELY AFFECT PLANT ESTABLISHMENT, SURVIVAL OR WARRANTY.  UNDESIRABLE SITE

CONDITIONS SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO

COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

9. SYMBOLS ON PLAN DRAWING TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCHEDULES IF DISCREPANCIES IN

QUANTITIES EXIST.

10. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL STEEL EDGING (5" TALL x

3

16

 " THICK) AT ALL MULCH BED BORDERS

THAT ARE NOT ADJACENT TO PAVEMENT OR THE BUILDING FOUNDATION.

PLANTING NOTES

1. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE “AMERICAN STANDARD

FOR NURSERY STOCK,” AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN.

2. ALL PLANTS SHALL BE TRUE TO TYPE, HAVE NORMAL AND WELL DEVELOPED BRANCHES AND

HAVE A VIGOROUS AND FIBROUS ROOT SYSTEM.  ALL PLANTS SHALL ALSO BE FREE OF ANY

DEFECTS, DISEASES, SUNCLAD INJURIES, ABRASIONS, INSECT EGGS, BORERS AND ALL FORMS

OF INFESTATION.  ALL NEW PLANTS SHALL BE NURSERY GROWN IN SIMILAR CLIMATIC

CONDITIONS AS THAT FOUND IN THE PROJECT AREA.

3. STAKE PROPOSED PLANTING LOCATIONS PER PLAN FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALL.

4. INSTALL PLANT MATERIAL ONCE FINAL GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION HAS BEEN COMPLETED IN

THE IMMEDIATE AREA.

5. INSTALL PLANT MATERIALS PER PLANTING DETAILS.

6. SUBSTITUTION REQUESTS FOR PLANT MATERIAL TYPE & SIZE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR CONSIDERATION PRIOR TO BIDDING.  ALL SUBSTITUTIONS AFTER

BIDDING MUST BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND ARE SUBJECT TO CONTRACT

ADJUSTMENTS.

7. ADJUSTMENTS IN LOCATION OF PROPOSED PLANT MATERIALS MAY BE NEEDED IN THE FIELD.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT MUST BE NOTIFIED PRIOR TO ADJUSTMENT OF ANY PLANTS.

8. APPLY PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE (PREEN OR APPROVED EQUAL) IN ALL PLANTING BEDS

FOLLOWED BY SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH.

9. INSTALL 3" DEEP SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH IN ALL PLANTING BEDS.  REMOVE ALL MULCH

FROM TOUCHING PLANT STEMS - PLANT STEMS SHOULD NOT BE IN DIRECT CONTACT WITH

MULCH.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT CONTACT:

MITCHELL COOKAS

MCOOKAS@SOLUTIONBLUE.COM

651-289-5534

1

1

TREE PLANTING DETAIL

NTS

3

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

NTS

2

PERENNIAL PLANTING DETAIL

NTS

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawing No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NINETEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2001 UNIVERSITY AVENUE SOUTHEAST SUITE 100 MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA  55414 PHONE (612) 623.1800 FAX (612) 623.0012

AutoCAD SHX Text
I hearby certify that this plan, specification, or report was prepared by me or under my direct  supervision and that I am a duly  Registered Architect under the laws of the state of:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Architects - Incorporated

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNATURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTRATION NUMBER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet Title

AutoCAD SHX Text
Project Number

AutoCAD SHX Text
Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not responsible for any claims, damages or expenses arising out of the unauthorized use of the information contained in electronic files. Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other related information.   This document may not be used or copied without prior consent.           all rights reserved 

AutoCAD SHX Text
Phase

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
Issue Notes

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revision Notes

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Appr

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
4456

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING LAKE PARK,

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMMANUEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHRISTIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/12/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
2/12/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE  FOR MAINTAINING TREES IN A PLUMB POSITION THROUGHOUT THE WARRANTY PERIOD. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY SIDES OF TREE PIT WITH SPADE BY HAND TO BIND WITH PREPARED SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' DIAMETER MULCH RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT PLANTING  SOIL TO 85 PERCENT  TO 85 PERCENT  OF MAXIMUM DRY UNIT  WEIGHT ACCORDING  TO ASTM D 698

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED  OR COMPACTED SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF  ENTIRE BED WITH SPADE BY HAND  TO BIND WITH PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" DEEPER THAN ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL FOR SHRUBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINER GROWN MATERIAL SHALL HAVE ROOTS HAND LOOSENED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGING, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE CONDITION VARIES, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPLICATION OF PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MULCH.  DO NOT PLACE MULCH  IN CONTACT WITH SHRUB STEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF  ENTIRE BED WITH SPADE BY HAND  TO BIND WITH PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL FOR PERENNIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINER GROWN MATERIAL SHALL HAVE ROOTS HAND LOOSENED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGING, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE CONDITION VARIES, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MULCH.  DO NOT PLACE MULCH  IN CONTACT WITH PLANT STEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMP SOIL AROUND ROOT BALL BASE  FIRMLY WITH FOOT PRESSURE SO  THAT ROOT BALL DOES NOT SHIFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE BURLAP,  TWINE, ROPE AND  WIRE FROM TOP  HALF OF ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" ORGANIC MULCH.   DO NOT PLACE  MULCH IN CONTACT  WITH TREE TRUNK.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" BUILT-UP EARTH  SAUCER BEYOND  EDGE OF ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH TREE SHALL BE PLANTED SUCH  THAT THE ROOT FLARE IS VISIBLE AT  THE TOP OF THE ROOT BALL.  IF THE  ROOT FLARE IS NOT VISIBLE, THE SOIL  SHALL BE REMOVED IN A LEVEL MANNER  FROM THE ROOT BALL TO WHERE THE  FIRST MAIN ORDER ROOT ( " DIA. OR  12" DIA. OR  LARGER) EMERGES FROM THE TRUNK.   SET MAIN ORDER ROOT 1" HIGHER THAN ADJACENT GRADE.  DO NOT COVER TOP  OF ROOT BALL WITH SOIL.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG PLANTING PIT 4" TO 6"  DEEPER THAN ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE CONDITION  VARIES, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE  FOR MAINTAINING TREES IN A PLUMB POSITION THROUGHOUT THE WARRANTY PERIOD. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY SIDES OF TREE PIT WITH SPADE BY HAND TO BIND WITH PREPARED SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' DIAMETER MULCH RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT PLANTING  SOIL TO 85 PERCENT  TO 85 PERCENT  OF MAXIMUM DRY UNIT  WEIGHT ACCORDING  TO ASTM D 698

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED  OR COMPACTED SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF  ENTIRE BED WITH SPADE BY HAND  TO BIND WITH PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. 4" DEEPER THAN ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL FOR SHRUBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINER GROWN MATERIAL SHALL HAVE ROOTS HAND LOOSENED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGING, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE CONDITION VARIES, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPLICATION OF PRE-EMERGENT HERBICIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MULCH.  DO NOT PLACE MULCH  IN CONTACT WITH SHRUB STEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF  ENTIRE BED WITH SPADE BY HAND  TO BIND WITH PLANTING SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING SOIL FOR PERENNIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTAINER GROWN MATERIAL SHALL HAVE ROOTS HAND LOOSENED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGING, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE CONDITION VARIES, SEE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MULCH.  DO NOT PLACE MULCH  IN CONTACT WITH PLANT STEM





W
W142

/300 = 1 OCC.

/300 = 2 OCC.

UP 

VIDEO
S130

/20 = 15 OCC.

/20 = 110 OCC.

/300 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC. /100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 4 OCC. /100 = 1 OCC. /100 = 1 OCC. /100 = 1 OCC.

/20 = 23 OCC.

/300 = 1 OCC.

/15 = 120 OCC.

/300 = 2 OCC.

UP

UP UP 

UP UP 

MID PLATFORM
S102

WOMEN
S114

MEN
S115

FAMILY
S116

M
E109 VEST.

E100

VEST.
W100

MEN
S110

WOMEN
S109

SERVER
W118

TOILET
W119

T
W135A

W
E108

MECH
W107A

SERVER
W155A

/20 = 21 OCC.

MEN
E130

WOMEN
E130A

3 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/20 = 32 OCC.

/100 = 5 OCC.

/20 = 22 OCC.

/7 = 268 OCC.
/200 = 3 OCC.

/300 = 1 OCC.

/15 = 120 OCC.

/20 = 93 OCC.

/35 = 11 OCC.

T.
106B

WOMEN
S122 MEN

S123

NURSERY
CHECK-IN

W137

M
W141

NURSERY

NURSERY

NURSERY

NURSERY

NURSERY

NURSERY

ADMIN

TOILET
W139A

/35 = 11 OCC.

/35 = 11 OCC.

/35 = 9 OCC.

T.
W131A

/100 = 4 OCC.

/100 = 2 OCC.
/100 = 3 OCC.

/35 = 12 OCC.

/35 = 10 OCC.

/100 = 2 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/20 = 47 OCC.

/100 = 2 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/300 = 2 OCC.

/20 = 22 OCC.

/20 = 17 OCC.
/20 = 21 OCC.

/20 = 20 OCC.

/200 = 1 OCC.

OVERLFOW

OVERFLOW

/20 = 21 OCC.

/20 = 22 OCC.

/20 = 16 OCC.

/7 = 584 OCC.
/20 = 204 OCC.

/15 = 50 OCC.

/300 = 1 OCC.

/300 = 1 OCC.

/20 = 9 OCC.

/7 = 940 OCC.
/15 = 439 OCC.

/15 = 23 OCC. /200 = 3 OCC.

1 OCC.

/300 = 2 OCC.

T.
W129

STAIR
W104

HALLWAY
W130

HALLWAY
W140

HALLWAY
W125

HALLWAY
E128

HALLWAY
E129

STAIR
W147

STAIR
E127

ST
E126

ST
W148

ST
E110

HALLWAY
W152

STAIR
W102

STAIR
E102

STAIR
E104

CORRIDOR
E103

CORRIDOR
W103

HALLWAY
W105

HALLWAY
E105

STAIR
S111

HALLWAY
S121

STAIR
S117

STAIR
S119

STAIR
S120

HALLWAY
S108

TOILET
S125A

SUMP
S114A

COLLABORATIVE LEARNING CTR.
E118

2046.014 sq ft

KITCHENETTE
E119

141.304 sq ft

PLATFORM
S101

1812.445 sq ft

ATRIUM
S128

6585.273 sq ft

STUDENT MINISTRY
E111

4092.076 sq ft

4th & 5th
W150

1877.456 sq ft

HALLWAY
S112

2432.631 sq ft

PREP
S124A

235.108 sq ft
FAMILY/BRIDE

S125
345.709 sq ft

OFFICE
W122

174.893 sq ft

OFFICE
W123

172.404 sq ft

OFFICE
W124

164.312 sq ft

COLLABORATION SPACE
W120

350.543 sq ft

RECEPTION
W110

496.353 sq ft

OFFICE
W111

144.72 sq ft

OFFICE
W112

141.668 sq ft

OFFICE
W113

141.668 sq ft

OFFICE
W114

140.905 sq ft

OFFICE
W115

142.431 sq ft

OFFICE
W116

141.413 sq ft

MECH/ELEC
W159

122.355 sq ft

STORAGE
E133

426.134 sq ft

KITCHEN
W146

486.793 sq ft

OPEN OFFICE
W121

360.503 sq ft

STORAGE
106C

92.53 sq ft

HALLWAY
S118

2374.893 sq ft

WORSHIP
S100

14542.167 sq ft

ELEC
E107

229.852 sq ft

BACKSTAGE
S103

499.977 sq ft

STORAGE
S105

84.968 sq ft

STORAGE
S104

92.768 sq ft

STORAGE
W145

318.828 sq ft

PRODUCTION
W106

636.768 sq ft

CLASSROOM
E124

433.838 sq ft

CLASSROOM
E122

400.478 sq ft

CLASSROOM
E121

433.372 sq ft

CLASSROOM
E125

436.653 sq ft

STORAGE
E114

487.925 sq ft

BREAKOUT
E115

409.622 sq ft

BREAKOUT
E116

436.648 sq ft

ADMIN WORK
W127

274.88 sq ft

QUIET
W138

297.383 sq ft

EQUAL CONCERNS
W139

394.651 sq ft

CONTROL RM
W155

184.504 sq ft

OFFICE
W154

114.226 sq ft

STORAGE
W158

134.875 sq ft

OFFICE
E132A

70.208 sq ft

OFFICE
W153

102.299 sq ft

OFFICE
W156

67.779 sq ft

OFFICE
W157

67.779 sq ft

STORAGE
E112

284.736 sq ft

STORAGE
E113

284.736 sq ft

GREEN
E132

947.926 sq ft OFFICE
E132C

151.667 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W131

320.538 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W132

381.838 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W133

381.913 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W134

381.913 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W136

349.322 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W135

418.232 sq ft

WORK
W128

130.496 sq ft

STORAGE
106A

60.644 sq ft

CLASSROOM
E120

415.773 sq ft

CLASSROOM
E123

332.627 sq ft

CLASSROOM
E117

327.182 sq ft

ST
E106

53.49 sq ft

OFFICE
E132B

70.208 sq ft

VESTIBULE
W126

189.135 sq ft

MECH
W144

119.741 sq ft

JANITOR
W143

88.77 sq ft

STORAGE
W151

553.199 sq ft

MOMS
S106

194.551 sq ft

STORAGE
S107

195.78 sq ft

ST
S126

147.384 sq ft

AV ST
S127

37.26 sq ft

ST
S129

321.02 sq ft

3 OCC.

2 OCC.

1,638 OCC. @ PEWS
18"/PERSON

/100 = 4 OCC.

WEST HALLWAY
W101

EAST HALLWAY
E101

CENTRAL LOBBY
W108

737.696 sq ft

/15 = 49 OCC.

MECH
W107B

HALLWAY
S113

OFFICE
W117

OPEN

EXIST BOOTH
S100A

COFFEE
S124B

190.391 sq ft

4 CUBICLES

5

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP UP

DN

DN

DOOR
1

DOOR
2

DOOR
3

DOOR
4

DOOR
5

DOOR
6

DOOR
7

DOOR
8

DOOR
9

12

1,332

16

2

3

112

36

35

268

42

42 167

168

178

480

124

320

320

1,332

76

210

268268

268

315

144 144

127 127

127

254253

127

144

144 144

144

144

1,115 1,116

1

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 1

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 2

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 1

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 3

BUILDING 2 BUILDING 3

RATED CROSS-CORRIDOR 
COMPRESSED STACK

NEW RATED DOOR

RATED CROSS-CORRIDOR 
COMPRESSED STACK

ROLL-DOWN 
FIRE SHUTTER

RATED CROSS-CORRIDOR 
COMPRESSED STACK

NEW RATED DOORNEW RATED DOOR

42 42

23

11
11
11
9
3
3
1

36
12
10
10711

36

1

210
20
23
21
17
22
22

335
2
1
3

50
584
640

1

168
320
21
22
16
1

110
658

1
1
2

47
51

51
7

2
1
1
1
1
1
7

32

120
2

127
127

3
2

1,638
2,019

144 144

144

145145

145

144

23 3

470 470

9
144
144
145
145
144
144

1
144
144
145
144
144
144

1
127
254
253
127
23

3
2,529

153 145

49
167
42
42
35
36

153
268
32

144
268

7
51

268
144

1,706

144
144

374
178
320
145
315

1,332

374

MAIN LEVEL CODE PLAN
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

1
A0.1

0 8 16 FT

Drawing No.

A0.1

MAIN LEVEL

KM

AK

4456

NICOLE THOMPSON

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

SPRING LAKE PARK,

MINNESOTA

EMMANUEL
CHRISTIAN

CENTER

 
NINETEEN

2001 UNIVERSITY
AVENUE SOUTHEAST

SUITE 100

MINNEAPOLIS,
MINNESOTA  55414

PHONE (612) 623.1800
FAX (612) 623.0012

I hearby certify that this plan,
specification, or report was

prepared by me or under my direct
supervision and that I am a duly

Registered Architect under the laws
of the state of:

Architects - Incorporated

PROJECT TITLE

ARCHITECT:

SIGNATURE

REGISTRATION NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

Sheet Title

Project Number

Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic 
files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not 
responsible for any claims, damages or expenses 
arising out of the unauthorized use of the 
information contained in electronic files.

Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final 
design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the 
user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other 
related information.  
This document may not be used or copied without 
prior consent.

©          all rights reserved

Phase

MINNESOTA

STATION

CODE PLAN

2016

Issue NotesDateNo.

Revision NotesDateNo. Appr

2016

PLUMBING REVIEW SUMMARY
IBC 2006

T 2902.1

CH.3 MINIMUM NUMBER OF PLUMBING FACILITIES
P.521 TOTAL OCC. FOR BUILDING TYPE A-3

6,456 OCC. 
6,456 OCC. /2 = 3,228 MEN AND 3,228 WOMEN 

22 MENS WATER CLOSETS REQUIRED = 26 PROVIDED (14 WATER CLOSETS AND 12 URINALS) 
(3,228/150=21.52)
17 MENS LAVATORIES REQUIRED = 18 MENS LAVATORIES PROVIDED
(3,228/200=  16.14)

44 WOMENS WATER CLOSETS REQUIRED = 47 WATER CLOSETS PROVIDED (33 WOMENS, 14 UNISEX)
(3228/75=43.04)
17 WOMENS LAVATORIES REQUIRED = 39 WOMENS LAVATORIES PROVIDED (25 WOMENS, 14 UNISEX)
(3,228/200=  16.14)

14 UNISEX RESTROOM PROVIDED (5 ADULT, 9 CHILD)

DRINKING FOUNTAINS  RATIO OF 1:1,000 OCC.
7 REQUIRED , X PROVIDED (EACH WITH 1 - ADA HEIGHT)

1 SERVICE SINK REQUIRED, X PROVIDED

NOT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION

BUILDING 1 - CODE REVIEW SUMMARY
2015 MINNESOTA BUILDING CODE

DESCRIPTION OF OCCUPANCY
303.4 GROUP A-3

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION
602.2 TYPE IIA

T 601 FIRE RESISTIVE REQUIREMENTS REQUIRED PROVIDED
STRUCTURAL FRAME (COLUMNS, GIRDERS, TRUSSES) 1 HR. 1 HR.
BEARING WALLS-EXTERIOR 1 HR. 1 HR.
BEARING WALLS-INTERIOR 1 HR. 1 HR.
NON-BEARING WALLS AND PARTITIONS - EXTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
NON-BEARING WALLS AND PARTITIONS- INTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
FLOOR CONSTRUCTION (INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS AND JOISTS) 1 HR. 1 HR.
ROOF CONSTRUCTION  (INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS AND JOISTS) 1 HR. 1 HR.

T 602 FIRE-RESISTIVE RATING REQ. FOR EXTERIOR WALLS BASED ON FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE
FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE HOURS
=> 30'-0" 0 HR.

T 503 ALLOWABLE HEIGHT AND BUILDING AREAS
P. 112 15,500 SF

SEC.506 AREA MODIFICATIONS  -- SPRINKLING USED FOR AREA

ALLOWABLE AREA PER FLOOR (Aa)   Aa={At+[At*If]+[At*Is]}    =   53,585 SF

At = TABULAR AREA PER STORY IN ACCORDANCE WTH T.503 = 15,500
Is = AREA INCREASE FACTOR DUE TO SPRINKLE PROTECTION IN ACCORDANCE W/ S.506.3
               MULTI-STORY = XX, ONE-STORY = XXX, NO SPRINKLER = X 200
If = AREA INCREASE FACTOR DUE TO FRONTAGE (S.506.2) = 0.46
          = [F/P-0.25]W/30
               F = BUILDING PERIMETER WHICH FRONTS ON A PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE (20' MIN) 676 FT
               P = PERIMETER OF ENTIRE BUILDING 956 FT
               W = WIDTH OF A PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE  (30' MAX) 30 FT

MAIN LEVEL 8,823 SF NEW
32,066 SF EXIST

40,889 SF TOTAL - OK

UPPER LEVEL 2,206 SF NEW
9,974 SF EXIST

12,180 SF TOTAL - OK

BUILDING 2 - CODE REVIEW SUMMARY
2015 MINNESOTA BUILDING CODE

DESCRIPTION OF OCCUPANCY
303.4 GROUP A-3

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION
602.2 TYPE IIB

T 601 FIRE RESISTIVE REQUIREMENTS REQUIRED PROVIDED
STRUCTURAL FRAME (COLUMNS, GIRDERS, TRUSSES) 0 HR. 0 HR.
BEARING WALLS-EXTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
BEARING WALLS-INTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
NON-BEARING WALLS AND PARTITIONS - EXTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
NON-BEARING WALLS AND PARTITIONS- INTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
FLOOR CONSTRUCTION (INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS AND JOISTS) 0 HR. 0 HR.
ROOF CONSTRUCTION  (INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS AND JOISTS) 0 HR. 0 HR.

T 602 FIRE-RESISTIVE RATING REQ. FOR EXTERIOR WALLS BASED ON FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE
FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE HOURS
=> 30'-0" 0 HR.

T 503 ALLOWABLE HEIGHT AND BUILDING AREAS
P. 112 15,500 SF

SEC.506 AREA MODIFICATIONS  -- SPRINKLING USED FOR AREA

ALLOWABLE AREA PER FLOOR (Aa)   Aa={At+[At*If]+[At*Is]}    =   31,544 SF

At = TABULAR AREA PER STORY IN ACCORDANCE WTH T.503 = 9,500
Is = AREA INCREASE FACTOR DUE TO SPRINKLE PROTECTION IN ACCORDANCE W/ S.506.3
               MULTI-STORY = XX, ONE-STORY = XXX, NO SPRINKLER = X 200
If = AREA INCREASE FACTOR DUE TO FRONTAGE (S.506.2) = 0.32
          = [F/P-0.25]W/30
               F = BUILDING PERIMETER WHICH FRONTS ON A PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE (20' MIN) 445 FT
               P = PERIMETER OF ENTIRE BUILDING 780 FT
               W = WIDTH OF A PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE  (30' MAX) 30 FT

MAIN LEVEL 281 SF NEW
30,390 SF EXIST

30,671 SF TOTAL - OK

UPPER LEVEL 0 SF NEW
27,042 SF EXIST

27,042 SF TOTAL - OK

BUILDING 3 - CODE REVIEW SUMMARY
2015 MINNESOTA BUILDING CODE

DESCRIPTION OF OCCUPANCY
303.4 GROUP A-3

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION
602.2 TYPE IIB

T 601 FIRE RESISTIVE REQUIREMENTS REQUIRED PROVIDED
STRUCTURAL FRAME (COLUMNS, GIRDERS, TRUSSES) 0 HR. 0 HR.
BEARING WALLS-EXTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
BEARING WALLS-INTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
NON-BEARING WALLS AND PARTITIONS - EXTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
NON-BEARING WALLS AND PARTITIONS- INTERIOR 0 HR. 0 HR.
FLOOR CONSTRUCTION (INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS AND JOISTS) 0 HR. 0 HR.
ROOF CONSTRUCTION  (INCLUDING SUPPORTING BEAMS AND JOISTS) 0 HR. 0 HR.

T 602 FIRE-RESISTIVE RATING REQ. FOR EXTERIOR WALLS BASED ON FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE
FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE HOURS
=> 30'-0" 0 HR.

T 503 ALLOWABLE HEIGHT AND BUILDING AREAS
P. 112 15,500 SF

SEC.506 AREA MODIFICATIONS  -- SPRINKLING USED FOR AREA

ALLOWABLE AREA PER FLOOR (Aa)   Aa={At+[At*If]+[At*Is]}    =   31,544 SF

At = TABULAR AREA PER STORY IN ACCORDANCE WTH T.503 = 9,500
Is = AREA INCREASE FACTOR DUE TO SPRINKLE PROTECTION IN ACCORDANCE W/ S.506.3
               MULTI-STORY = XX, ONE-STORY = XXX, NO SPRINKLER = X 200
If = AREA INCREASE FACTOR DUE TO FRONTAGE (S.506.2) = 0.33
          = [F/P-0.25]W/30
               F = BUILDING PERIMETER WHICH FRONTS ON A PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE (20' MIN) 285 FT
               P = PERIMETER OF ENTIRE BUILDING 493 FT
               W = WIDTH OF A PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE  (30' MAX) 30 FT

MAIN LEVEL 0 SF NEW
14,302 SF EXIST

14,302 SF TOTAL - OK

UPPER LEVEL 0 SF NEW
8,500 SF EXIST

8,500 SF TOTAL - OK

NOTE:  FELLOWSHIP BALCONY S209 IS NOT USED CONCURRENTLY AND IS NOT INCLUDED IN PLUMBING COUNT.

CITY SUBMISSION SET
02/05/2016





DN

DN

DN

DN DN

DN

DN

SOUTH BALCONY
S208

5223.158 sq ft

K-1ST
E215

3103.454 sq ft

/35 = 12 OCC.

DN 

/300 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 2 OCC.

DN DN

DN
DN

DN DNDN

DN 

CLASSROOM
W216

372.687 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W217

415.475 sq ft

ELEC
E208

225.752 sq ft

OFFICE
W234

165.157 sq ft

SECURITY OFFICE
W224

278.464 sq ft

MECH
W223

185.235 sq ft

KITCHEN
W206

367.234 sq ft

STORAGE
W222

322.839 sq ft

OFFICE
W237

158.367 sq ft

T
W216A

CLASSROOM
W219

519.619 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W221

440.896 sq ft

T
W219A

37.048 sq ft

OFFICE
W235

142.824 sq ft

OFFICE
W233

154.984 sq ft

OFFICE
W232

171.703 sq ft

OFFICE
W231

172.336 sq ft

OPEN WORKSPACE
W230

337.546 sq ft

CLASSROOM
W215

415.475 sq ft

OFFICE
W236

230.548 sq ft

PK LOBBY
W210

/300 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 2 OCC.

/35 = 12 OCC.

/100 = 2 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC. /100 = 1 OCC.
/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC. /100 = 1 OCC.

/200 = 2 OCC.

VOLUNTEER
E211

920.033 sq ft

/300 = 1 OCC.

PK

PK

OFFICE
W238

167.002 sq ft

T
W215A

T
W217A

T
W218A

CLASSROOM
W218

556.269 sq ft

PK LARGE GROUP
W213

2115.963 sq ft

PK

PK

PK

JANITOR
W226

ST
W225

134.635 sq ft

UPPER LOBBY
W241

453.986 sq ft

4th & 5th

ACTIVITY RM
W207

1503.197 sq ft
STORAGE

W208
395.929 sq ft

ROOF

ST
E206B

70.136 sq ft

ACTIVITY RM
E207

978.673 sq ft

RESOURCE
E212

413.846 sq ft

STORAGE
E214

184.796 sq ft

STORAGE
E213

134.542 sq ft

GIRLS
E217

BOYS
E216

STORAGE
E221

151.243 sq ft

ELEV. LOBBY
S212

150.932 sq ft

FELLOWSHIP BALCONY
S209

1768.811 sq ft

/100 = 3 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/100 = 1 OCC.

/35 = 10 OCC.

/35 = 15 OCC.

/20 = 22 OCC.

/20 = 106 OCC.

/300 = 1 OCC.

 1 OCC.
/20 = 75 OCC. /20 = 49 OCC.

/7 = 394 OCC.
/20 = 138 OCC.

/7 = 443 OCC.
/20 = 155 OCC.

/300 = 1 OCC.

/20 = 21 OCC.

/20 = 46 OCC.

1 OCC. PER 18"
= 172 OCC.

/7 = 92 OCC.
/20 = 32 OCC.

/7 = 253 OCC.
/20 = 88 OCC.

/35 = 16 OCC.

2 OCC.

2 OCC.

ACCESS
E205

DN

MECH
W205

EAST UPPER CORRIDOR
E201

WEST UPPER CORRIDOR
W201

EAST BALCONY
S204WEST BALCONY

S205

STAIR
W202

STAIR
W200 STAIR

E200

STAIR
E202

STAIR
E219

STAIR
W229

STAIR
W204

STAIR
E204

HALLWAY
W239

HALLWAY
W227

HALLWAY
W212

H
AL

LW
AY

W
21

1

HALLWAY
E218

HALLWAY
W228

HALLWAY
W203

HALLWAY
E203

STAIR
S203

BACKSTAGE
S201

STAIR
202

STAIR
S206

STAIR
S207

STAIR
S210

STAIR
S211

PK

T
W221A

50.678 sq ft

ST
W220

89.379 sq ft

STORAGE
E206A

242.202 sq ft

ELEV. MECH.
S212B

2ND & 3RD
E220

2757.656 sq ft

168 OCC. @ 18"

2 OCC.

762 OCC. @ PEWS
18"/PERSON

ELECT.
W213A

STOR.
W213B

WOMEN
E209

MEN
E210

JAN
E209

STOR
E207A

STOR
E207B

HALLWAY
W203A

6

57

70

69

76

89

89 197

197

234

234

210

209

268268

269

268

315

127

127 127

253 254

127

254

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 1

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 2

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 1

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 3

BUILDING 2 BUILDING 3

RATED CROSS-CORRIDOR 
COMPRESSED STACK

NEW RATED DOOR

EXISTING RATED DOOREXISTING RATED DOOR

ROLL-DOWN 
FIRE SHUTTER

AREA OF 
REFUGE 
PER 1007.6.1

AREA OF 
REFUGE 
PER 1007.6.1

EXISTING RATED DOOR EXISTING RATED DOOR

N
EW

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

EX
IS

TI
N

G

12 OCC.

6

36 35

35

8 8

10
12
35
59

12
16
35
36
2

15
22
1

139

42 42

42 42
2

42
42
92
178

197
222
419

2
1
1

21
443
419

234
209
197
178

1
69
57
2

75
1
1

49
1,073

3837

268

UPPER LEVEL CODE PLAN
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

1
A0.2

0 8 16 FT

Drawing No.

A0.2

UPPER LEVEL

KM

AK

4456

NICOLE THOMPSON

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

SPRING LAKE PARK,

MINNESOTA

EMMANUEL
CHRISTIAN

CENTER

 
NINETEEN

2001 UNIVERSITY
AVENUE SOUTHEAST

SUITE 100

MINNEAPOLIS,
MINNESOTA  55414

PHONE (612) 623.1800
FAX (612) 623.0012

I hearby certify that this plan,
specification, or report was

prepared by me or under my direct
supervision and that I am a duly

Registered Architect under the laws
of the state of:

Architects - Incorporated

PROJECT TITLE

ARCHITECT:

SIGNATURE

REGISTRATION NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

Sheet Title

Project Number

Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic 
files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not 
responsible for any claims, damages or expenses 
arising out of the unauthorized use of the 
information contained in electronic files.

Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final 
design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the 
user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other 
related information.  
This document may not be used or copied without 
prior consent.

©          all rights reserved

Phase

MINNESOTA

STATION

CODE PLAN

2016

Issue NotesDateNo.

Revision NotesDateNo. Appr

2016

NOT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION

CITY SUBMISSION SET
02/05/2016





ST

ST

CUSTODIAN

CONFERENCE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM CLASSROOM

EC OFFICE

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

PROD

VIDEO PROD

OFFICE OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

CONFERENCE

OFFICE

OFFICE

STORAGE

RECEIVING

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

OFFICE

WORK RM

STOR

STORAGE

CE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

VOLUNTEER LOUNGE

GYM/FELLOWSHIP/YOUTH

CHAPEL

MECH

MECH

STORAGE

T.

WOMEN

MEN

MEN WOMEN

KITCHENETTE

COFFEE

T

ST

T

T

T

INFOINFO

WELCOME AREA

T

5

STOR

MEDIA

STORAGE

OFFICE

STORAGE

OFFICE

OFFICE

OFFICE

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP UP

T

DN

DN

DOOR
1

DOOR
2

DOOR
3

DOOR
4

DOOR
5

DOOR
6

DOOR
7

DOOR
8

DOOR
9

A

B

C

Y

X

W

R1

17
1'-

0"

D

Z V

E

F

G

I

J

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

B

C

D

E

H

12 13

11'-11 3/4"

6

14

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

4

3

3

4

14

4

4

2

4
14

6

7
3

14

8

15

15

42

15

7

4

1

3

4

4

33

3

4

3

3

5

4

5

3

14

14

1

3

4

4

4

15

3

3

3

3

4

3

3

7

8

3

7

7

30

15

15

15

15

2

2

3

3

9

3

9

10 10

25

17

17

17

17

17

9

3

15

7

2

10

6
6

14 148
8

5 29

4 4

4
13

16

77

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

25

4

14

6
6

4

4

3

1

12 25

33

3

7

1 1

1

1

1

2

7

6

6

1512

7

2512
3928

4
9

36

1512 1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

1512
1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

2715
15

7

3

12

12

15

15

25

1515

2715

2715 2715

1

2715

15 12

1512 38

22

2715

7

7

6

1512

4423 30

15

3

1512

1512

1512

2715

3
1512

1512

2715

4

15 3015

3015

7

3

2715

2715

2715

2715

2715

2715

2715

1512

7

27152715

1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

6

3

7

1512

1512

1512

1512

4

1512

1512

1512

1512
1512

4

2412 15

11

2512

1

1

1

17
17

3024

29

29

297

2715

7

4012 15 2

32

32

32

29

2715

31

31

2715 2715

1512

2715

1512

45

30

30

30

30

30

30

32

32

32

27 15

31

31

31
31

1512

294

29 29

1512

16 16 16 16 16 16 16

44

15 11

30 30 3030

29

29

27 15

29

4

ALT. #1

ALT. #1

ALT. #2 ALT. #2

DEDUCT 
ALT. #4

DEDUCT 
ALT. #4

38

37

ALT. #4

12 15

35

3

46

46

46

46

46

3

2

MAIN LEVEL DEMO PLAN
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

1
A2.1

0 8 16 FT
Drawing No.

A2.1

MAIN LEVEL

KM, EW, MM

AK

4456

NICOLE THOMPSON

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

SPRING LAKE PARK,

MINNESOTA

EMMANUEL
CHRISTIAN

CENTER

 
NINETEEN

2001 UNIVERSITY
AVENUE SOUTHEAST

SUITE 100

MINNEAPOLIS,
MINNESOTA  55414

PHONE (612) 623.1800
FAX (612) 623.0012

I hearby certify that this plan,
specification, or report was

prepared by me or under my direct
supervision and that I am a duly

Registered Architect under the laws
of the state of:

Architects - Incorporated

PROJECT TITLE

ARCHITECT:

SIGNATURE

REGISTRATION NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

Sheet Title

Project Number

Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic 
files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not 
responsible for any claims, damages or expenses 
arising out of the unauthorized use of the 
information contained in electronic files.

Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final 
design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the 
user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other 
related information.  
This document may not be used or copied without 
prior consent.

©          all rights reserved

Phase

MINNESOTA

STATION

DEMO PLAN

2016

Issue NotesDateNo.

Revision NotesDateNo. Appr

2016

NOT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION

SPECIFIC DEMO NOTES
BELOW IN THE LOCATION 
CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS DESIGNATED 

ITEMS TO BE REMOVED SHOWN DASHED.
IDENTIFIED BY THE FOLLOWING SYMBOL.                                                         

1. STUD WALL AS REQUIRED FOR NEW OPENINGS.
2. MASONRY WALL AS REQUIRED FOR NEW OPENINGS.
3. STUD WALL AND ALL INTEGRAL COMPONENTS INCLUDING ANY DOOR 

AND WINDOWS.
4. MASONRY WALL AND ALL INTEGRAL COMPONENTS INCLUDING ANY 

DOOR AND WINDOWS.
5. PLUMBING FIXTURE(S)
6. MILLWORK & ALL RELATED FIXTURES
7. DOOR OR WINDOW, FRAME, & ALL RELATED HARDWARE
8. STAIR & ALL RELATED COMPONENTS
9. STAIR FLOORING & ALL RELATED HARDWARE
10. PEWS
11. SOUND BOOTH WALLS, RAISED FLOOR, MILLWORK, & ALL RELATED 

HARDWARE
12. ACT, ACT GRID & LIGHTS
13. CANOPY & COLUMNS
14. TILE FLOORING & BASE, PLUMBING FIXTURES, PARTITIONS, & 

ACOUSTICAL CEILING & LIGHTS
15. FLOORING & BASE
16. COLUMN
17. STAINED GLASS WINDOW - SAVE FOR RELOCATION BY OWNER
18. PLATFORM & RAMP
19. PARTITION WALL & TRACK
20. BAPTISMAL, BAPTISMAL FLOOR STRUCTURE, & SLOPED CEILING 

ABOVE
21. CONCRETE FLOOR STRUCTURE AS REQUIRED FOR NEW 

CONSTRUCTION
22. COUNTERTOPS, CABINETS TO REMAIN
23. ACOUSTICAL WALL PANELS AROUND ENTIRE ROOM AND AT CEILING.  

SAVE FOR RELOCATION.
24. SLOPED CONCRETE FLOOR SLAB & ADJACENT FLOOR SLAB AS 

REQUIRED TO ACHIEVE NEW LEVEL CONCRETE FLOOR
25. TILE FLOORING & BASE
26. CONCRETE FLOOR STRUCTURE AS REQUIRED FOR NEW STAIR
27. ACT & LIGHTS, GRID TO REMAIN
28. CONCRETE STOOP & WALK AS REQUIRED FOR NEW VESTIBULE
29. COAT RACKS
30. LIGHTS
31. WOOD & MASONRY COLUMN ENCLOSURES
32. WALL PANELING
33. PRECAST WALL AS REQUIRED FOR NEW OPENING
34. BASE & UPPER CABINETS AS REQUIRED FOR NEW CONVECTION 

OVEN
35. RETURN AIR SHAFT
36. SHIPS LADDER FOR RELOCATION
37. ELEVATOR EQUIPMENT
38. CONCRETE FLOOR AS REQUIRED FOR NEW PLUMBING
39. METAL CEILING & LIGHTS AS REQUIRED FOR NEW VESTIBULE
40. WALL & FLOOR GRILLES FOR INFILL
41. GYM SPORTS FLOORING
42. FLOOR AS REQUIRED FOR NEW JANITORS SINK
43. ROOF STRUCTURE AS REQUIRED FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION
44. RTU, SAVE FOR RELOCATION TO ROOF.  REMOVE ASSOCIATED 

CONCRETE SLAB & DUCTWORK
45. GWB CEILING AND LIGHT SHELF
46. EXTERIOR METAL SIDING ABOVE & BELOW WINDOW

 

GENERAL DEMO NOTES
A. FIELD VERIFY DEMOLITION REQUIREMENTS.
B. REFERENCE FLOOR PLANS, AND DETAILS FOR ADDITIONAL 

DEMOLITION NOTES.
C. FOR RELATED DEMOLITION WORK, REFER TO STRUCTURAL, 

MECHANICAL, AND ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.  STRUCTURAL, 
MECHANICAL, AND ELECTRICAL DEMOLITION DIRECTIONS SHALL 
TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER ARCHITECTURAL DIRECTIONS IN THEIR 
SECTIONS OF WORK.

D. PROTECT ALL EXISTING WORK TO PREVENT DAMAGE FROM THE 
ELEMENTS DURING DEMOLITION AND UNTIL NEW WORK IS IN PLACE.

E. OWNER TO REMOVE ALL FURNISHINGS AND MOVABLE EQUIPMENT.
F. ALL OTHER EQUIPMENT REMOVAL TO BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF 

THE DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
G. ALL OTHER MATERIALS AND ITEMS OF DEBRIS OF DEMOLITION SHALL 

BE DISPOSED OF OFF SITE BY THE DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR TO 
PROVIDE A CLEAN SUITABLE SURFACE FOR THE INSTALLATION OF 
NEW WORK. 

H. REMOVE ALL FINISHES FOR ALL MINOR DEMOLITION REQUIRED TO 
PROVIDE A CLEAN SUITABLE SURFACE FOR INSTALLATION OF NEW 
FINISHES AND CONSTRUCTION.

I. PROVIDE ALL MISCELLANEOUS DEMOLITION.
J. COORDINATE POWER, WATER SUPPLY, AND OTHER SERVICE 

INTERRUPTIONS WITH OWNER.
K. PATCH HOLES IN FLOORS, WALLS, CEILINGS, ETC. WHERE WINDOWS, 

DOORS OR EQUIPMENT WILL BE PROVIDED.
L. WHERE ENTIRE WALLS ARE INDICATED TO BE REMOVED, REMOVE 

ENTIRE WALL INCLUDING ALL INTEGRAL DOORS, WINDOWS, FRAMES, 
MECHANICAL DUCTING AND PIPING, ELECTRICAL CONDUIT, 
EQUIPMENT, OR OTHER MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS.  WHERE FLOORS 
ARE SHOWN TO BE REMOVED, REMOVE OR PATCH AS REQUIRED AND 
PREPARE FOR NEW FLOOR FINISH.  SEE ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE 
FOR NEW FINISHES.  DEMO CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL 
TEMPORARY SHORING OR SUPPORT OF EXISTING STRUCTURAL 
ELEMENTS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

M. VERIFY ALL WALLS TO BE REMOVED WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION 
DRAWINGS.  VERIFY ANY DISCREPANCIES WITH ARCHITECT PRIOR TO 
REMOVAL.

CITY SUBMISSION SET
02/05/2016





Drawing No.

A2.2

MAIN LEVEL

KM, EW, MM

AK

4456

NICOLE THOMPSON

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

SPRING LAKE PARK,

MINNESOTA

EMMANUEL
CHRISTIAN

CENTER

 
NINETEEN

2001 UNIVERSITY
AVENUE SOUTHEAST

SUITE 100

MINNEAPOLIS,
MINNESOTA  55414

PHONE (612) 623.1800
FAX (612) 623.0012

I hearby certify that this plan,
specification, or report was

prepared by me or under my direct
supervision and that I am a duly

Registered Architect under the laws
of the state of:

Architects - Incorporated

PROJECT TITLE

ARCHITECT:

SIGNATURE

REGISTRATION NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

Sheet Title

Project Number

Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic 
files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not 
responsible for any claims, damages or expenses 
arising out of the unauthorized use of the 
information contained in electronic files.

Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final 
design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the 
user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other 
related information.  
This document may not be used or copied without 
prior consent.

©          all rights reserved

Phase

MINNESOTA

STATION

DEMO PLAN

2016

Issue NotesDateNo.

Revision NotesDateNo. Appr

2016

GENERAL DEMO NOTES
A. FIELD VERIFY DEMOLITION REQUIREMENTS.
B. REFERENCE SITE DEMO PLANS, FLOOR PLANS, AND DETAILS FOR 

ADDITIONAL DEMOLITION NOTES.
C. FOR RELATED DEMOLITION WORK, REFER TO STRUCTURAL, 

MECHANICAL, AND ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS.  STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL, AND ELECTRICAL 
DEMOLITION DIRECTIONS SHALL TAKE
PRECEDENCE OVER ARCHITECTURAL DIRECTIONS IN THEIR 
SECTIONS OF WORK.

D. PROTECT ALL EXISTING WORK TO PREVENT DAMAGE FROM THE 
ELEMENTS DURING DEMOLITION
AND UNTIL NEW WORK IS IN PLACE.

E. OWNER TO REMOVE ALL FURNISHINGS AND MOVABLE EQUIPMENT.
F. ALL OTHER EQUIPMENT REMOVAL TO BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF 

THE DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR
UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.

G. ALL OTHER MATERIALS AND ITEMS OF DEBRIS OF DEMOLITION SHALL 
BE DISPOSED OF OFF SITE
BY THE DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE A CLEAN SUITABLE 
SURFACE FOR THE
INSTALLATION OF NEW WORK.

H. REMOVE ALL FINISHES FOR ALL MINOR DEMOLITION REQUIRED TO 
PROVIDE A CLEAN SUITABLE 
SURFACE FOR INSTALLATION OF NEW FINISHES AND CONSTRUCTION.

I. PROVIDE ALL MISCELLANEOUS DEMOLITION.
J. COORDINATE POWER, WATER SUPPLY, AND OTHER SERVICE 

INTERRUPTIONS WITH OWNER.
K. PATCH HOLES IN FLOORS, WALLS, CEILINGS, ETC. WHERE WINDOWS, 

DOORS OR EQUIPMENT
WILL BE PROVIDED.

L. WHERE ENTIRE WALLS ARE INDICATED TO BE REMOVED, REMOVE 
ENTIRE WALL INCLUDING
ALL INTEGRAL DOORS, WINDOWS, FRAMES, MECHANICAL DUCTING 
AND PIPING, ELECTRICAL
CONDUIT, EQUIPMENT, OR OTHER MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS.  WHERE 
FLOORS ARE SHOWN TO BE
REMOVED, REMOVE OR PATCH AS REQUIRED AND PREPARE FOR 
NEW FLOOR FINISH.  SEE
ROOM FINISH SCHEDULE FOR NEW FINISHES.  DEMO CONTRACTOR 
RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL 
TEMPORARY SHORING OR SUPPORT OF EXISTING STRUCTURAL 
ELEMENTS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

M. VERIFY ALL WALLS TO BE REMOVED WITH NEW CONSTRUCTION 
DRAWINGS.  VERIFY ANY
DISCREPANCIES WITH ARCHITECT PRIOR TO REMOVAL.

NOT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION

SPECIFIC DEMO NOTES
BELOW IN THE LOCATION 
CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS DESIGNATED 

ITEMS TO BE REMOVED SHOWN DASHED.
IDENTIFIED BY THE FOLLOWING SYMBOL.                                                         

1. STUD WALL AS REQUIRED FOR NEW OPENINGS.
2. MASONRY WALL AS REQUIRED FOR NEW OPENINGS.
3. STUD WALL AND ALL INTEGRAL COMPONENTS INCLUDING ANY DOOR 

AND WINDOWS.
4. MASONRY WALL AND ALL INTEGRAL COMPONENTS INCLUDING ANY 

DOOR AND WINDOWS.
5. PLUMBING FIXTURE(S)
6. MILLWORK & ALL RELATED FIXTURES
7. DOOR OR WINDOW, FRAME, & ALL RELATED HARDWARE
8. STAIR & ALL RELATED COMPONENTS
9. STAIR FLOORING & ALL RELATED HARDWARE
10. PEWS
11. SOUND BOOTH WALLS, RAISED FLOOR, MILLWORK, & ALL RELATED 

HARDWARE
12. ACT, ACT GRID & LIGHTS
13. CANOPY & COLUMNS
14. TILE FLOORING & BASE, PLUMBING FIXTURES, PARTITIONS, & 

ACOUSTICAL CEILING & LIGHTS
15. FLOORING & BASE
16. COLUMN
17. STAINED GLASS WINDOW - SAVE FOR RELOCATION BY OWNER
18. PLATFORM & RAMP
19. PARTITION WALL & TRACK
20. BAPTISMAL, BAPTISMAL FLOOR STRUCTURE, & SLOPED CEILING 

ABOVE
21. CONCRETE FLOOR STRUCTURE AS REQUIRED FOR NEW 

CONSTRUCTION
22. COUNTERTOPS, CABINETS TO REMAIN
23. ACOUSTICAL WALL PANELS AROUND ENTIRE ROOM AND AT CEILING.  

SAVE FOR RELOCATION.
24. SLOPED CONCRETE FLOOR SLAB & ADJACENT FLOOR SLAB AS 

REQUIRED TO ACHIEVE NEW LEVEL CONCRETE FLOOR
25. TILE FLOORING & BASE
26. CONCRETE FLOOR STRUCTURE AS REQUIRED FOR NEW STAIR
27. ACT & LIGHTS, GRID TO REMAIN
28. CONCRETE STOOP & WALK AS REQUIRED FOR NEW VESTIBULE
29. COAT RACKS
30. LIGHTS
31. WOOD & MASONRY COLUMN ENCLOSURES
32. WALL PANELING
33. PRECAST WALL AS REQUIRED FOR NEW OPENING
34. BASE & UPPER CABINETS AS REQUIRED FOR NEW CONVECTION 

OVEN
35. RETURN AIR SHAFT
36. SHIPS LADDER FOR RELOCATION
37. ELEVATOR EQUIPMENT
38. CONCRETE FLOOR AS REQUIRED FOR NEW PLUMBING
39. METAL CEILING & LIGHTS AS REQUIRED FOR NEW VESTIBULE
40. WALL & FLOOR GRILLES FOR INFILL
41. GYM SPORTS FLOORING
42. FLOOR AS REQUIRED FOR NEW JANITORS SINK
43. ROOF STRUCTURE AS REQUIRED FOR NEW CONSTRUCTION
44. RTU, SAVE FOR RELOCATION TO ROOF.  REMOVE ASSOCIATED 

CONCRETE SLAB & DUCTWORK
45. GWB CEILING AND LIGHT SHELF
46. EXTERIOR METAL SIDING ABOVE & BELOW WINDOW

 

A

B

C

Y

X

W

R1

17
1'-

0"

D

Z V

E

F

G

I

J

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

B

C

D

E

H

12 13

11'-11 3/4"

HONOR STARS
243

STORAGE
240

CLASSROOM
247

STORAGE
233

GATHERING

FELLOWSHIP
230

FELLOWSHIP FELLOWSHIP

MECH
236

CLASSROOM
209

CLASSROOM
211

CLASSROOM
246

CLASSROOM

GATHERING
237

FIFTH
238

FOURTH
239

THIRD
241

SECOND
242

FIRST
244KINDERGARTEN

245

GREAT ROOM
201

STORAGE
226

STORAGE
225

ROYAL RANGERS
224

CLASSROOM
249

STORAGE
234

235

BAPTISTRY

MEN

WOMEN

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

DN

ELEC
 

CLASSROOM

CLASSROOM

STOR. STOR.

STOR.
 

STOR.
 

DN

DN

DN DN

DN

DN

1

33

3 4

3 3

18

18

3

5

1

33

1

4

4

4

3

19

19

19

15

14

19
8

11

3
2

4

4

15

8

3

4

3

3

3

3

18

18

3

7

3

4

4

3

3

3

4

3

3

3

3

15

3

15

15

19

8

7

15

20

3

8

22 2

3

8

1515

7

33

3

7

7

7

7

1

1

3

7

1512

1512

1512

1512

15 15 15

33

1512

2715

2715

1512

38

38

38

42 1512 1512

22

1512 1512

37

42

33

2

14

22

34

27152715 2715

1512426 26 1512

1512

27152715 2715

1512 2715 2715

ALT. #3

1512

1512

3

3

18

1512 1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

1512

4

43

43

30

ALT. #4

3 3

2715

2715

2715

6

6

38

38

129
129

3

15

2
7

4

UPPER LEVEL DEMO PLAN
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

1
A2.1

0 8 16 FT
CITY SUBMISSION SET
02/05/2016





WEST ELEVATION
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

3
A6.1

0 8 16 FT

FINISHED FLOOR
100'-0"

U.L. FLOOR
110'-10.5"

ADDITIONREMODEL

1
3

77

ELEVATOR 
ADDITION

2

1

8

6

9 TYP

ALT. #6

2 ALT. #6

1
4

9

em m anu e l2
4

10 10

8'
-0

" 22
'-0

"

25
'-2

"

EAST ELEVATION
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

1
A6.1

FINISHED FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. PARAPET
135'-0"

ADDITION REMODEL

U.L. FLOOR
110'-10.5"

0 8 16 FT

3

77

ALTERNATE
1

3em m anu e l

48

ALT. #6

T.O. NEW GLAZING
125'-2"

4
4

2

2
1010

9

9TYP ALT. #7 ALT. #7

1111 1111

6

22
'-0

"

8'
-0

"

4

youthyouthNextGen Kids

SOUTH ELEVATION
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

2
A6.1

0 8 16 FT

FINISHED FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. SCREENING
132'-0"

ADDITION REMODEL

U.L. FLOOR
110'-10.5"

ADDITIONREMODEL

STEEL CROSS W/ TNEMIC HIGH
PERFORMANCE PAINTELEVATOR ADDITION

6

7

3

11 7

6

66

9 TYP

T.O. NEW GLAZING
125'-2"

33

1

3

2
ALTERNATE

em m anu e l2
48

3
4 8

em m anu e l

92 ALT. #6

5

2ALT. #6

10 10

NextGen Kids

4

TYP

1

Drawing No.

A6.1

BUILDING SECTION &

EW,KM,MM

NLT

4456

NICOLE THOMPSON

DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT

SPRING LAKE PARK,

MINNESOTA

EMMANUEL
CHRISTIAN

CENTER

 
NINETEEN

2001 UNIVERSITY
AVENUE SOUTHEAST

SUITE 100

MINNEAPOLIS,
MINNESOTA  55414

PHONE (612) 623.1800
FAX (612) 623.0012

I hearby certify that this plan,
specification, or report was

prepared by me or under my direct
supervision and that I am a duly

Registered Architect under the laws
of the state of:

Architects - Incorporated

PROJECT TITLE

ARCHITECT:

SIGNATURE

REGISTRATION NUMBER:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

Sheet Title

Project Number

Errors may occur in the transmission of electronic 
files.  Station Nineteen Architects, Inc. is not 
responsible for any claims, damages or expenses 
arising out of the unauthorized use of the 
information contained in electronic files.

Electronic files may not accurately reflect the final 
design conditions.  It is the responsibility of the 
user to verify all layouts, dimensions and other 
related information.  
This document may not be used or copied without 
prior consent.

©          all rights reserved

Phase

MINNESOTA

STATION

ELEVATIONS

2016

Issue NotesDateNo.

Revision NotesDateNo. Appr

2016

NOT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION

CITY SUBMISSION SET
02/05/2016

ELEVATION & SECTION NOTES
1. PRECAST CONCRETE PANEL W/ FORMLINER TEXTURE
2. PERFORATED METAL PANEL OR SCREEN ATTACHED TO BUILDING W/ TUBE 

STEEL STRUCTURE 
3. ALUMINUM FRAME GLAZING
4. SIGNAGE ATTACHED TO METAL SCREEN
5. BACKLIT LOGO SIGN
6. PAINTED PERFORATED METAL PANEL WRAPPED AROUND EXISTING 

CANOPIES
7. EXISTING DOORS & WINDOWS
8. NEW CANOPY WITH RADIUS TUBE STEEL COLUMNS AND PERFORATED 

METAL PANEL
9. PREFABRICATED METAL SUN SHADES WITH RADIUS FASCIA
10. PRECAST CONCRETE PANEL W/ 1/2" REVEALS IN RANDOM PLANK PATTERN
11. METAL PANEL AT WALL INFILL

SOUTH ELEVATION WITHOUT ALTERNATES
Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"

4
A6.1

0 8 16 FT

FINISHED FLOOR
100'-0"

T.O. SCREENING
132'-0"

ADDITION REMODEL

U.L. FLOOR
110'-10.5"

ADDITIONREMODEL

STEEL CROSS W/ TNEMIC HIGH
PERFORMANCE PAINTELEVATOR ADDITION

6

7

3

11 7

6

66

9 TYP

T.O. NEW GLAZING
123'-2"

33

1

3

em m anu e l2
48

9

5

10 10

NextGen Kids

4

TYP

1

3
4 8

em m anu e l













 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 3.7.16 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.  Phil will be absent from the 3.7.16 meeting.  
 

 

2015 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803135).  

This project includes lining and wye grouting in the northeast corner of the city.  The 

Contractor, Visu-Sewer, has completed most of the grout work on the service wyes.   

 
2014-2015 Street Improvement Project (193801577).      

The contractor, Valley Paving Inc., has punch-list work including seeding items and 

structure adjustments remaining.  Final work will be completed in 2016.      

 

CSAH 35 Turn Lanes and Sidewalk (193802914).  

Construction is substantially complete.  Punch-list inspection will be completed in the 

spring.                  

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 

Ongoing implementation items.  Will work on closing out existing site permits and 

identifying private stormwater ponds that need maintenance.        

 
Lift Station No. 1 Equipment (pumps, generator, and control panel) (193802805). 

Equipment suppliers continue work on their items.  Generator has been delivered. Lift 

station pumps will be delivered in the next few weeks (to be timed with excavation).     

 
Lift Station No. 1 Reconstruction (193803115). 

The Contractor, Meyer Contracting, has started dewatering and excavation work.  Base 

structure work should begin in mid-March.     

 

2016 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803421).  

Finalizing bid documents.  Bids will be received in early April.  Council will consider 

contract award at council meeting on April 18th.        

 

2016 Street Seal Coat Project (193803424). 

Finalizing bid documents.    Bids will be received in early April.  Council will consider 

contract award at council meeting on April 18th.           

 

Other issues/projects.    
 

Working with Terry on options for bituminous trail repairs at various locations.   

 

Worked with Planner and Administrator on comments for proposed ECC building 

addition.  

 
Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Tim Grinstead, Peter Allen, or me if you 

have any questions or require any additional information.   



 



 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
 

 

 

TO: MAYOR HANSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: DANIEL R. BUCHHOLTZ, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: MET COUNCIL REFORM 

DATE: FEBRUARY 29, 2016 
 
 

 

 
Commissioner Robyn West asked that I provide the City Council with the attached materials from a 

working group calling for reform of the Metropolitan Council. 

 

Both the North Metro Mayors Association and Metro Cities have reform of the Metropolitan Council 

on their work plan.  Both organizations have reviewed the attached proposal but have declined to 

proceed.  Both the North Metro Mayors Association and Metro Cities call for staggering the terms 

of the Met Council members.  A bill setting staggered terms for Met Council members this has been 

heard in the Legislature and these two city organizations feel that with a short session in 2016, it is 

best to focus on that issue at the present time. 

 

For your information. 



 

 

 

February 8, 2016 
 
 
 
Dear Manager/Administrator/Clerk, 
 
We are part of a coalition of County and City leaders from the suburban metropolitan area 
who have become increasingly concerned with a lack of accountability from the 
Metropolitan Council, especially as its scope of authority and involvement in regional 
issues continue to expand. It is our belief that an updated Metropolitan Council 
governance structure, one that makes the Council accountable to the regional 
constituency of those impacted by its decisions, would benefit this region greatly. We seek 
your support for the attached principles for reform that would increase local participation 
and collaboration to help guide orderly growth and economic development in our region.  
 
We ask that you adopt the attached resolution calling for substantive change to the 
Council. 
 
Structure Limits Local Representation 
Metropolitan Council members are non-elected individuals answerable only to the 
Governor, an office that has often been elected without majority support from 
metropolitan-area voters. We believe the Council, which has the ability to levy taxes on 
metropolitan-area residents, should be answerable to the citizens and taxpayers of the 
area it represents rather than a single officeholder and should feature strong county 
representation and representation from other local elected officials. This call for reform 
echoes the 2011 conclusion of the nonpartisan Office of the Legislative Auditor. In the 
evaluation report Governance of Transit in the Twin Cities Region, Legislative Auditor 
Nobles recommended a Council with a mix of gubernatorial appointees and elected 
officials from the region. 
 
Substantial Changes In Role of Council Since 1967 
The Metropolitan Council was established in 1967 to provide regional planning services for 
the Twin Cities area. However, at the same time the Council’s management of growth, in 
particular its coordination of regional services, has changed dramatically. The Council’s 
scope has increased, but not its level of accountability to the local governments and 
citizens of the metropolitan area. Many citizens and local government officials feel 
disconnected from the present Metropolitan Council, undermining its credibility and 
preventing it from functioning as an effective regional governance body.  
 
In closing, we hope you will join us in our call for reform by adopting the attached 
resolution with principles to strengthen regional planning and development. We welcome 
the opportunity to meet with you and your colleagues to present this and discuss further. 
Please contact Claire Pritchard at 651.438.4540 (or at Claire.Pritchard@co.dakota.mn.us) 
for more information or to schedule a presentation by an elected official to your Council or 
Board. We look forward to working with you in this effort to unite the region for continued 
growth and prosperity. 

 

County Administration 
 

Dakota County 
Administration Center 

1590 Highway 55 
Hastings, MN 55033 

 
651.438.4528 

Fax 651.438.4405 
www.dakotacounty.us 

 

 

http://www.auditor.leg.state.mn.us/PED/2011/transit.htm
http://www.dakotacounty.us/


 

 

Please make every effort to return the adopted resolution to Claire.Pritchard@co.dakota.mn.us by 

Tuesday, March 8, or as early as possible given your approval process. 

 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Jeff Johnson 
Hennepin County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Rhonda Sivarajah 
Anoka County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Matt Look 
Anoka County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Scott Schulte 
Anoka County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Brian Kirkham 
Bethel City Council 

 
 
 
 
Randy Maluchnik  
Carver County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Tom Workman 
Carver County Board of Commissioners  

 
 

 
 

Denny Laufenburger 
Mayor, City of Channassen 

 
 
 
 
Nancy Schouweiler 
Dakota County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Liz Workman 
Dakota County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Chris Gerlach 
Dakota County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Mike Franklin 
Jordan City Council 

 
 
 
 
Mike Beard 
Scott County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
 
 
Jon Ulrich 
Scott County Board of Commissioners 

 
 
Enclosures: 3 



 

1 
 

TEMPLATE RESOLUTION: Supporting Principles for Reform of the Metropolitan Council  

 

WHEREAS, regional planning and local government cooperation is vital to the continued success of the 

Minneapolis-St. Paul Metropolitan Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Council is, by statute, the regional planning agency for the Minneapolis-St. 

Paul Metropolitan Area, with broad authority, including the ability to levy taxes, charge fees and set 

regional policy; and  

WHEREAS, cities and counties are the entities most directly affected by policies and financial decisions 

of the Metropolitan Council, making them the primary constituents of the Metropolitan Council; and 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Council’s scope of authority and involvement in regional issues has 

expanded significantly over the years; and  

WHEREAS, a governmental entity, particularly one with taxing authority, to be effective, must be credible, 

and responsive and accountable to those it represents; and  

WHEREAS, the appointment of Metropolitan Council members resides solely with the Governor, 

effectively making the Governor the primary constituent of the Metropolitan Council; and 

WHEREAS, many cities and counties believe that the Metropolitan Council lacks accountability and 

responsiveness to them as direct constituents; and  

WHEREAS, many cities and counties believe that the authority to impose taxes and set regional policy 

should be the responsibility of local government elected officials; and  

WHEREAS, reform is necessary to ensure that the Metropolitan Council is an effective, responsive, and 

accountable partner for regional development and progress.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Metropolitan Council, due to its taxing and policy 
authority, should be accountable to a regional constituency of those impacted by its decisions; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Metropolitan Council should not operate as a state agency 
answerable to only one person, the Governor, as it does in its current form; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the ____________ supports reform of the Metropolitan Council that 
adheres to the following principles:  

 
I. A majority of the members of the Metropolitan Council shall be elected officials, appointed 

from cities and counties within the region;  

II. Metropolitan cities shall directly control the appointment process for city representatives to 
the Metropolitan Council;  
 

III. Metropolitan counties shall directly appoint their own representatives to the Metropolitan 
Council;  
 

IV. The terms of office for any Metropolitan Council members appointed by the Governor shall be 
staggered and not coterminous with the Governor;  

 
V. Membership on the Metropolitan Council shall include representation from every metropolitan 

county government;  
 

VI. The Metropolitan Council shall represent the entire region, therefore voting shall be 
structured based on population and incorporate a system of checks and balances. 



 

 

Metropolitan Governance Reform 

Twin Cities’ Local Government Coalition 

-Statement of Objectives- 
 

  A coalition of local governments throughout the metropolitan area has joined together to 
develop a position statement and a set of principles for improving metropolitan governance 
in the Twin Cities.  
 
The Coalition supports the need for regional planning, collaboration and coordination, but 
seeks to expand local government representation on the Metropolitan Council. 

The Coalition’s objectives for its collective effort to improved governance are: 
 

1. To articulate a  vision of responsive and effective metropolitan governance—as 
represented by a Statement of Belief and Principles for Reform of the Metropolitan 
Council 

2. To align local government interests behind a reform effort—through formation of a 
broad coalition of metropolitan Cities and Counties —and a common position. 

3. To be prepared for any efforts—legislative and otherwise—to reform the 
governance structure and functioning of the Metropolitan Council. 

Attached is the Coalition’s Statement of Belief and Principles for Reform. 



 

2 
 

Twin Cities’ Local Government Coalition  

 Principles for Metropolitan Council Reform  
 

The following principles were developed by a coalition of cities and counties in the metropolitan area, a 

coalition created to advocate for reform of the Metropolitan Council. The group believes that an effective 

Metropolitan Council should reflect the following principles, which were developed based on the group’s 

core Statement of Belief (printed below). 

 

STATEMENT OF BELIEF:  

The Metropolitan Council, due to its taxing and policy authority, should be accountable to a regional 
constituency of those impacted by its decisions. It should not operate as a state agency—as it does in 
its current form—answerable to only one person, the Governor.  

 

 

Principles for Metropolitan Council Reform:  
 

 
I. A majority of the members of the Metropolitan Council shall be elected officials, appointed 

from cities and counties within the region. 

II. Metropolitan cities shall directly control the appointment process for city representatives to 
the Metropolitan Council.  
 

III. Metropolitan counties shall directly appoint their own representatives to the Metropolitan 
Council. 
 

IV. The terms of office for any Metropolitan Council members appointed by the Governor shall 
be staggered and not coterminous with the Governor.  

 
V. Membership on the Metropolitan Council shall include representation from every 

metropolitan county government. 
 

VI. The Metropolitan Council shall represent the entire region, therefore voting shall be 
structured based on population and incorporate a system of checks and balances. 

 
 

 

 
 
 



 

3 
 

Background and Justification of Position 

The Metropolitan Council was created to provide for the orderly and economic development of the Twin 

Cities metropolitan area. It has the responsibility and authority to guide the region’s growth and to 

provide important regional services. The Counties of Anoka, Carver, Dakota, and Scott support the 

concept of a regional approach, and have no wish to abolish the Council or diminish the importance of 

regional collaboration. 

However, the Council’s management of growth, and in particular the coordination and delivery of 

regional services has changed dramatically. At the same time, the role of counties has evolved. 

Increasingly, Counties have undertaken direct provision of regional services including: hazardous and 

solid waste management, transit funding and transitway development, regional parks, regional 

highways, water resources planning and watershed management, greenway and bikeway development, 

farmland and open space preservation, the regional library system, fiber communications networks, and 

the 800 MHz radio network.  

The Council’s recent focus on reducing poverty and disparities makes it even more essential that within 

the governance structure there is understanding and improved coordination with county programs---

which exclusively provide economic assistance, social services, workforce development/employment, 

counseling, public health, nutrition and family “home visiting” services, workforce and specialized 

housing programs and many other anti-poverty and human services. In these and many other 

circumstances, the State, Metropolitan Council and city governments have all looked to counties to 

provide both the financial and political leadership needed to address key regional issues. 

Thus, while a strong regional approach is necessary for many issues, it is necessary for the regional 

governing body to feature strong county representation, as well as representation from other local 

elected officials. Currently, the members of the Council are non-elected individuals answerable only to 

the Governor, an office that has often been elected without majority support from metropolitan-area 

voters. The Council, which has the ability to levy taxes on metropolitan-area residents, should be 

answerable to the citizens and taxpayers of the area it represents rather than a single officeholder. 

The best way to ensure that the interests of citizens of the metropolitan-area are represented is to 

have a preponderance of locally elected officials on the Council--individuals that do not serve 

exclusively at the pleasure of the Governor. This will have the added benefit of allowing the Council to 

meet federal guidelines to serve as the region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization, a move encouraged 

by Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and Federal Highway Administration (FHA) to make the Council 

“more directly accountable to its public1.” 

Regional governance is vital to the metropolitan area’s continued success. However, in order for a 

regional body to be effective it must be credible, meaning that regional citizens must feel that the body 

effectively represents their goals and values. Citizens currently feel disconnected from the Metropolitan 

Council, preventing it from functioning as an effective regional governance body. The coalition of 

suburban counties is working to join the Metropolitan Council with the people it represents, so the 

region as a whole can unite for continued growth and prosperity. 

                                                             
1 Letter from representatives of FTA and FHA to Ann R. Goering of Ratwik, Roszak, & Maloney, P.A., Aug. 3 2015 



 

1 
 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS: METROPOLITAN COUNCIL REFORM PRINCIPLES 
 

1) Why now? 

Reform of the Metropolitan Council has been an issue on the minds of many local governments 

for many years. However, political realities have created obstacles that thwarted many previous 

attempts at reform. 

The release of ThriveMSP2040 reinvigorated the drive for reform in many cities and counties 

who were unhappy with aspects of the plan. However, our call for change is not a reaction to 

the specifics of the plan, or to how it allocates resources. Instead, the experience drove home 

what little incentive the Council has to take into account the opinions of local governments. 

Councilmembers do not answer to the local constituency, but rather to a constituency of one: 

the Governor. We realized this was the core problem, and the release of Thrive2040 was the 

catalyst that renewed our efforts to build a coalition for governance reform.  

2) Who makes up the coalition? 

The coalition originated with officials from Anoka, Carver, Dakota, and Scott Counties, who 

share a collective opinion that the Metropolitan Council must be more accountable to the 

regional constituency. They made the decision to develop principles for reform, and, knowing it 

was important to have the perspective of cities represented as well, invited certain city officials 

with interest in reform to join the group. The city officials (listed in Attachment A) represent 

themselves alone, and do not necessarily represent the views of their entire councils. Together 

this group developed a mutually-agreed-upon set of principles for reform. 

3) You’re asking cities to adopt these principles, knowing that they go against the position of 

Metro Cities. Doesn’t this undermine the work of the Metro Cities organization? 

 

We believe that Metro Cities plays a vital role in advocating for city interests, and we did invite 

them to play a part in the development of the shared principles. However, they ultimately 

decided to withdraw from the group due the incompatibility of our positions. We had hoped to 

work together toward reform, and we hope to work together in the future if the position of the 

organization changes.  
 

However, in the meantime we are aware of many cities with positions on Metropolitan Council 

reform that contradict the official Metro Cities position, and we believe that those cities should 

have their voices heard in the Legislature.  

 

 

 

 



 

2 
 

4) What are the next steps? 

 

These draft principles have been distributed to every city and county in the metropolitan area, 

and we hope to have as many as possible adopt these principles. We are happy to discuss the 

principles, along with our reasons for wanting reform, with any Board or Council in the area. 

 

During the Legislative Session we will present these adopted resolutions to Legislators to 

illustrate how important reform is to local governments in the metro-area, and we will work 

with Legislators to advance reform proposals that meet the adopted principles. 

 

5) How do other cities do it? 

 

Every other major metropolitan area’s regional planning organization (see Attachment B), as 

well as every other regional planning organization in Minnesota, is made up of a majority of 

local elected officials.  

 

6) Is this an effort to get rid of the Metropolitan Council? 

 

Absolutely not. Regional governance is important, but it would be more effective and credible 

with local representation.  In the current system, Metropolitan Council members are non-

elected individuals answerable only to the Governor, an office that has often been elected 

without majority support from metropolitan-area voters.  The Council, which has the ability to 

levy taxes on metropolitan-area residents, should be answerable to the citizens and taxpayers of 

the area it represents rather than a single officeholder and should feature strong county 

representation from local elected officials. 
 

7) Is this a reaction to the ThriveMSP2040 plan?  

No. Many cities and counties were unhappy with aspects of the Council’s plan. However, our call 

for reform is not a reaction to the specifics of the plan, or to how it allocates resources. Instead, 

the experience drove home to many what little incentive the Council has to take into account 

the opinions of local governments. The Council does not answer to the local constituency, but 

rather to a constituency of one- the Governor. We realized that this was the core problem, and 

the release of Thrive2040 was the catalyst to renew our efforts to build a coalition for 

governance reform. 

8) Is there other support for this? 
 

Yes, many other entities and organizations have come out in support for reform. In 2011, for 

example, the Office of the Legislative Auditor released a report recommending that the 

Metropolitan Council be composed of a majority elected officials, citing the Council’s “limited 

credibility” due to a governance structure that limits accountability. 

 

http://www.auditor.leg.state.mn.us/ped/pedrep/transit.pdf


 

3 
 

The City of Minneapolis also passed a resolution on January 14, 2011, asking the Legislature to 

reform the Council so that a “majority of council members shall be locally elected city and 

county officials.”  

 

Furthermore, representatives of the Federal Highway Administration and Federal Transit 

Administration, responsible for certifying the Council as eligible to receive federal transportation 

and transit funding, have encouraged reform of the Council to make it “more directly 

accountable to its public.” 

 

9) Would these principles turn the Metropolitan Council into a Council of Governments (COG)? 
 

No. Councils of Governments have little authority beyond transportation planning and regional 

coordination of service. The level of authority that the Legislature has granted the Metropolitan 

Council, including the authority to levy taxes, is unique. None of the proposed principles 

diminish Council authority in any way, and will not transform the Council into a COG. 

 

10) Do you oppose the Governor? 
 

No.  This is not a partisan issue- we would feel the same way whether the Governor was a 

Republican or a Democrat. What troubles us is that the entire membership and focus of the 

Council can shift depending on who is in power. The Council should represent the interests of 

the region, not a single individual. 
 

11) Is this about the suburbs complaining? 
 

No. This is about ensuring that the entire region feels represented by the Metropolitan Council. 

 

12) Is the Met Council accountable to their constituents? 
 

No. Although the Met Council has the power to levy taxes on metropolitan area residents, it is  

not accountable to those residents and is instead solely accountable to the Governor, an 

individual that over the last five election cycles was only once elected with majority support 

from metro-area voters. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 
 

QUESTIONS ABOUT THE PRINCIPLES THEMSELVES: 

 

13) Aren’t local elected officials too busy to serve on the Council?  
 

There is a time commitment to serving on the Council, true, but it is only a part-time 

engagement. Many current Metropolitan Council members hold other full-time jobs. 

Furthermore, local elected officials serve on the metropolitan planning organizations of every 

other large city in the country.  
 

If these principles are enacted it will be part of cities and counties’ role to ensure that those 

appointed to the Council are comfortable with the time commitment.   

 

14) Isn’t it a conflict of interest to ask an official elected by one specific city or county to represent 

an entire region? 
 

Local elected officials already serve in many capacities where they must consider regional 

interests. The Council’s Transportation Advisory Board, for example, which recommends 

allocation of transportation and transit funding throughout the region, is made up of majority of 

local elected officials. The Counties Transit Improvement Board and the Metropolitan Mosquito 

Control District Board are two other examples where local elected officials serve and represent 

the interests of an entire region. Even the structure of County Boards and City Councils requires 

local elected officials to represent the interests of the entire city/county, rather than the specific 

district that elected them.  

 

15) What happens if a local elected official leaves office in the middle of his/her Metropolitan 

Council appointment? 
 

We purposely made these principles high-level. We do not want to get into the details of a 

specific plan; that is the job of the Legislature. These issues will be considered as a plan 

develops. 
 

16) What about the criticisms of the role of the Council? These principles don’t address any of 

that.  

True, and many of us do have thoughts on the role of the Council. However, we believe that the 

first step is to reform the governance of the Council. Once the Council is accountable to its 

metropolitan constituency we can consider the role that it should play in the region’s future. 

17) You mention a system of voting and checks and balances- can you elaborate? 

We purposely made these principles high-level. We do not want to get into the details of a 

specific plan; that is the job of the Legislature. However, we do believe that the Council should 

represent all citizens in the area, without allowing the large urban core to drive all decision 

making.  



 

 

ATTACHMENT A: PARTICIPANTS IN THE METROPOLITAN GOVERNANCE WORKING GROUP 

 
 

Participating County Officials: 
 
Anoka County:  Commissioner Matt Look 
   Commissioner Scott Schulte 

Commissioner Rhonda Sivarajah 
   County Administrator Jerry Soma 
   
Carver County:  Commissioner Randy Maluchnik 
   Commissioner Tom Workman 
   County Administrator Dave Hemze 
 
Dakota County:   Commissioner Chris Gerlach 
   Commissioner Nancy Schouweiler 
   Commissioner Liz Workman 
   County Manager Brandt Richardson 
 
Scott County:   Commissioner Mike Beard 

Commissioner Jon Ulrich 
   County Administrator Gary Shelton 
 
 
Participating City Officials: 
 
 
Bethel:    Councilmember Brian Kirkham 
 
Burnsville:  Councilmember Bill Coughlin 
 
Chanhassen:  Mayor Denny Laufenburger 
 
Elko New Market:  Mayor Bob Crawford 
 
Jordan:    Councilmember Mike Franklin 
 
Lino Lakes:   Mayor Jeff Reinert 
 
Prior Lake:   Mayor Ken Hedberg 
 
Rosemount:  Councilmember Jeff Weisensel 
 
Shakopee:   Mayor Bill Mars 
 



Attachment B Metropolitan Planning Agencies in Large Metropolitan Areas

Name

Governance Structure

San Diego Association of 

Governments

The Board includes 20 local elected officials as well as non-voting members from various 

state and federal agencies and other organizations.

Summary: All voting members are local elected officials. There are no citizen members.

Metropolitan Council
The Council consists of 16 citizens appointed by the Governor. 

Summary: All voting members are citizens. There are no elected officials on the Council.

North Jersey Transportation 

Planning Authority

The Board consists of 15 local elected officials, 4 other government representatives, and 1 

citizen representative (position is currently vacant).

The 3 other government representatives are from the Port Authority, the NJ Governor's 

Authorities Unit, NJ Department of Transportation, and NJ TRANSIT.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There is one citizen 

member.

Metropolitan Transportation 

Commission (Oakland CA)

The Board consists of 16 local elected officials, 2 representatives of the federal 

government, 1 representative of state government, and 2 representatives of local 

organizations.

The state representative is from the California State Transportation Agency.

The 1 organizations are the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 

and the Association of Bay Area Governments.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There are no citizen 

members.

Houston-Galveston Area Council

The Board consists of 30 local elected officials, 6 judges, and 1 representative of the 

Independent School Districts.

The local elected officials represent cities and counties in the metro area, although some 

cities and counties are represented by judges.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There are no citizen 

members.

http://www.sandag.org/index.asp?fuseaction=about.board
http://www.sandag.org/index.asp?fuseaction=about.board
http://www.njtpa.org/About-NJTPA/Board-of-Trustees.aspx
http://www.njtpa.org/About-NJTPA/Board-of-Trustees.aspx
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/about_mtc/commissioners/
http://www.mtc.ca.gov/about_mtc/commissioners/
http://www.h-gac.com/about/board/board-of-directors-members.aspx


Attachment B Metropolitan Planning Agencies in Large Metropolitan Areas

Name

Governance Structure

North Central Texas Council of 

Governments

The Board consists of 9 local elected officials, 3 judges, and a non-voting member of the 

Texas Legislature.

The metro-area cities are represented by mayors or councilmembers; the counties are 

represented by judges.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials (although there are 

no county elected officials- counties are represented by judges). There are no citizen 

members.

Boston Region MPO

The Board consists of 14 local elected officials, 8 representatives from other governments 

and organizations, and 2 nonvoting representatives from the federal government.

The elected officials are all mayors and selectmen of local towns; there are no county 

representatives.

There are 2 representatives from regional planning organizations, as well as 

representatives from regional transit and transportation authorities and the 

Massachusetts Department of Transportation.

Summary: The majority of the voting members are local elected officials. There are also 

no citizen members.

Atlanta Regional Commission 

The Board consists of 23 local elected officials, 15 citizens, and 1 non-voting representative 

from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs.

There is 1 citizen representative from each of 15 districts in the metro area, elected by the 

23 public officials. 

Summary: All voting members are either local elected officials or are citizen members 

selected by local elected officials.

Puget Sound Regional Council

The Council has a general assembly consisting of all elected officials from all member 

jurisdictions. The Assembly establishes the budget and elects representatives to the 

Executive Board. 

The Executive Board consists of 30 elected officials and 2 representatives from the 

Washington State Transportation Commission and the Washington State Department of 

Transportation.

Summary: All voting members are either local elected officials or are selected by local 

elected officials. There are no citizen members.

http://www.nctcog.org/edo/board.asp
http://www.nctcog.org/edo/board.asp
http://www.ctps.org/Drupal/mpo_membership
http://www.atlantaregional.com/about-us/overview/history-funding--membership
http://www.psrc.org/about/boards/exec


Attachment B Metropolitan Planning Agencies in Large Metropolitan Areas

Name

Governance Structure

National Capital Region  

Transportation Planning Board

The Board consists of 32 local elected officials and 2 representatives from state 

government. 

The 2 state representatives are legislators from the Maryland and Virginia General 

Assemblies.

Summary: The majority of voting members are elected officials. There are no citizen 

members.

Maricopa Association of 

Governments

The Council consists of 32 local elected officials, 4 state representatives, and 1 member of 

a citizen organization.

The elected officials are mayors, councilmembers, etc. from metro towns, cities, and 

reservations. 

There are also 2 representatives each from the State Transportation Board and the Arizona 

Department of Transportation.

Finally, there is a representative from the Citizens Transportation Oversight Commission.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There is one citizen 

member, a representative of a citizen oversight commission.

Southwestern Pennsylvania 

Commission

The Executive Committee consists of 11 local elected officials, 3 at-large members, and 

representatives from the Pennsylvania Department of Economic Development, 

Department of Transportation, and Governor's Office.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There are 3 at-large 

members.

Delaware Valley Regional 

Planning Commission

The Board consists of 16 state government appointees, 24 local government elected 

officials and staff, and 2 attorneys. as well as a number of non-voting members.

There are 4 representatives from the PA Department of Transportation and 3 from the NJ 

Department of Transportation. 

There are also 3 representatives from the PA Governor's Policy Office, 1 other PA 

Governor's appointee, 3 from the NJ Department of Community Affairs, and 2 appointees 

from the NJ Governor. 

Summary: The majority of voting members are either local elected officials or local 

government staff members. There are no citizen members.

http://www.mwcog.org/about/board/
http://www.mwcog.org/about/board/
http://www.azmag.gov/Committees/Committee.asp?CMSID=1009
http://www.azmag.gov/Committees/Committee.asp?CMSID=1009
http://www.spcregion.org/about_comm_off.shtml
http://www.spcregion.org/about_comm_off.shtml
http://www.dvrpc.org/asp/boardList/default.aspx
http://www.dvrpc.org/asp/boardList/default.aspx


Attachment B Metropolitan Planning Agencies in Large Metropolitan Areas

Name

Governance Structure

New York Metropolitan 

Transportation Council

The Board consists of 5 local elected officials, 3 city representatives, 1 state 

representative, and 7 non-voting members from various  federal and state agencies.

The 5 local elected officials are the County Executives of the 5 metro counties. The city 

representatives are heads of the New York City Transportation Authority, Department of 

Transportation, and Department of City Planning.

The state representative is from the New York State Department of Transportation.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials or representatives 

from city government. There are no citizen members.

Baltimore Regional 

Transportation Board 

The Board consists of 7 local elected officials and 4 representatives from state 

departments (3 non-voting). 

A representative from the Maryland Department of Transportation has voting privileges. 

Summary: All voting members, except one, are local elected officials. 

Southeast Michigan Council of 

Governments

The Council has a general assembly consisting of delegates from all local governments in 

the region. The Executive Committee consists of local elected officials as well as 

representatives from community colleges  and the Regional Transit Authority of Southeast 

Michigan.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There are no citizen 

members. 

Chicago Metropolitan Agency for 

Planning

The Board consists of appointments from each of the metro counties- the members are a 

combination of elected officials and representatives of nonprofits and private industry. 

There are also 2 non-voting Governor's appointees and a non-voting representative of the 

Regional Transportation Authority. 

Summary: The majority of voting members are elected officials and all are appointed by 

local jurisdictions. There is a Citizens' Advisory Committee created by the Board.

Southern California Association 

of Governments

The Regional Council consists of elected local officials representing 67 districts, all 

members of the Los Angeles City Council and the Mayor, as well as 1 elected 

representative from each of the 6 counties in the district, and representatives from 

regional transportation commissions and tribal governments.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There are no citizen 

members.

http://www.nymtc.org/
http://www.nymtc.org/
http://www.baltometro.org/about-the-brtb/brtb-members
http://www.baltometro.org/about-the-brtb/brtb-members
http://www.semcog.org/Data/generalassembly.cfm
http://www.semcog.org/Data/generalassembly.cfm
http://www.cmap.illinois.gov/about
http://www.cmap.illinois.gov/about
http://www.scag.ca.gov/about/Pages/GoverningStructure.aspx
http://www.scag.ca.gov/about/Pages/GoverningStructure.aspx


Attachment B Metropolitan Planning Agencies in Minnesota

Name Governance Structure

Duluth-Superior Metropolitan 

Interstate Council

The Board consists of 15 local elected officials from Minnesota and Wisconsin, 2 citizens, 

and one representative from the Duluth Transit Authority.

There are two citizen members, one representing the City of Duluth and one the City of 

Superior.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There are two 

citizen representatives. 

Grand Forks - East Grand Forks 

Metropolitan Planning 

Organization

The Board consists of 6 local elected officials as well as 2 representatives from the 

Planning Commissions of the City of Grand Forks and the City of East Grand Forks.

Summary: The majority of voting members are local elected officials. There are no 

citizen representatives. 

Fargo-Moorhead Metropolitan 

Council

The Board consists of 11 elected officials and 3 representatives from the Fargo and 

Moorhead Planning Commissions.

Summary: The majority of voting members are elected officials. There are no citizen 

representatives.

St. Cloud Area Planning 

Organization

The Board consists of 11 local elected officials as well as representatives from the Central 

Minnesota Transportation Alliance and St. Cloud Metro Bus.

Summary: The majority of voting members are elected officials. There are no citizen 

representatives.

Metropolitan Council
The Council consists of 16 citizens appointed by the Governor. 

Summary: All voting members are citizens. There are no elected officials on the Council.

Rochester-Olmsted Council of 

Governments

The Board consists of 16 local elected officials, including 2 representatives from school 

districts, and 2 citizen members.

Summary: The majority of voting members are elected officials. There are two citizen 

representatives.

La Crosse Area Planning 

Committee

The Board consists of 10 local elected officials.

Summary: All voting members are elected officials. There are no citizen representatives.

Mankato/North Mankato Area 

Planning Organization

The Board is made up of 6 local elected officials.

Summary: All voting members are elected officials. There are no citizen representatives.

http://www.dsmic.org/documentstore/MIC Info/General/MIC Info Sheet-current.pdf
http://www.dsmic.org/documentstore/MIC Info/General/MIC Info Sheet-current.pdf
http://www.theforksmpo.org/PDFS/WebMPObrief2014A.pdf
http://www.theforksmpo.org/PDFS/WebMPObrief2014A.pdf
http://www.theforksmpo.org/PDFS/WebMPObrief2014A.pdf
http://www.fmmetrocog.org/
http://www.fmmetrocog.org/
http://www.stcloudapo.org/
http://www.stcloudapo.org/
http://www.co.olmsted.mn.us/planning/rocog/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.co.olmsted.mn.us/planning/rocog/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.lapc.org/Content/About/WhoistheLAPC.htm
http://www.lapc.org/Content/About/WhoistheLAPC.htm
http://www.mankato-mn.gov/mapo-policy-board/Page.aspx
http://www.mankato-mn.gov/mapo-policy-board/Page.aspx


 



a
X
}J

sq
.+

P)

al

:i,j

>J
c

Ê¡)

lh

o
'

Fw
I
JJl

v

s
r"2,

¿
Ft

Õ

€

F

4

(t/

t

Êrl
iJ)
i-J
lJ1 l

r.,¿J

c

vr :f
*Í1
4

iJ
lìÉ'
't> l

o
,|n

*5
I
p

trç

Êr
vr

ro
Ðär

1.

,,

3.

.J>

{J

î
d

H

5

U
a
,¿2

"iJ
O
l-
U
o

i{

L)
a

(ü

a

t-¿

a

6

o

l<

t

+J

U
rsv
4

4

Locnl GovERNMENT OpprcrALS

March 30r 2016
Broadway Pizza

11822 Aberdeen Street NE

Hosted of Blaine

tal licensing orRental of private
inspections outsi

4. Update on

5. Medical

Blaine

BIaine

Columbus' Ooon Rapids' East llethcl' Fritiley' I-lam Lakc' IIilltop



Menu
Broadway Pizza

$L3.50 per person

. Pizza and Salad Buffet

Coffeeo milk and pop included
?k ?k ?k tr:k ?k ?k ?k tr ?k ?k ?k ?k ?k ?k tr ?k tr tr:k ?k ?k ?k * ?k

Cash bar available

See you there!

RSVP needed by March23,20l6
Tina Pedersen , nt 763-323-5837
tina.pedersen@ co.anoka.mn.us

Please make checks payable to Anoka Countv













 



 

H:\AKCO\T42110775\1_Corres\E_Public Involvement\Open House_02-09-2016\2016-02-09_Open House Summary.docx 

 

  

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

Date: February 10, 2016 

To: Jack Forslund, PTP 

Multimodal Planning Manager, Anoka County Transportation Division 

From: Bryan Nemeth, P.E., PTOE 

Traffic and Transportation Engineer 

Subject: Open House Summary 

CSAH 8 Roadway Modification Study 

 

The first Open House for the CSAH 8 Roadway Modification Study was held on February 9th, 2016 at 

Woodridge Elementary School in Spring Lake Park, MN. The Open House was held from 7:00 to 9:00 

PM with a presentation that started at approximately 7:30 PM.  

This Open House was intended to introduce the community to the study along with an understanding of 

current issues, concerns, and conditions. Four time periods are being evaluated including AM, School 

AM, School PM, and PM peak. A Sunday analysis is also included. Overall, the corridor operates 

acceptably with some congestion at TH 47, TH 65, and at cross streets during the peak hours and 

Sundays. Multi-modal service levels are acceptable for transit and pedestrians but considered to be poor 

for bicyclists. There have been 32 crashes on the corridor over the last five years, 12 of them at Monroe 

Street. An additional 27 crashes have occurred at TH 47 and 39 at TH 65. The corridor currently carries 

8,900 vehicles per day. Traffic has decreased on the corridor over the last ten years but the analysis 

considers an increase in traffic up to the previous levels.  

The Open House presented operations and safety of the existing corridor as well as options to be 

considered for the corridor and intersections. This included the current corridor configuration of a four-

lane undivided roadway, a four-lane divided roadway, and a 3-lane roadway. Intersection configurations 

included the current traffic control of a signal and all-way stops or changes including roundabouts and 

medians at specific locations. A focus of the alternatives analysis was on safety, capacity, access, and 

multi-modal impacts. 

There were approximately 30 people in attendance. Of these, 18 of them signed in. 

Verbal comments were received by Anoka County, City of Fridley, City of Spring Lake Park, and Bolton 

& Menk Staff both during the presentation and before and after the presentation at the Open House 

Boards. Many of the verbal comments centered on the concern for changing anything when it appears to 

be acceptable. Other comments included wanting to maintain the capacity of the roadway by maintaining 

two lanes in each direction, wanting to slow down traffic, motorists running the stop controlled 

intersections, Sunday traffic concerns at 5th Street, and discussion on emergency vehicle access. There 

were also comments about the St Paul Water Works line, the condition of the trail on the north side of the 

roadway, truck impacts (especially as related to City of Spring Lake Park future action to eliminate truck 



 

 

Page 2 

 

 

H:\AKCO\T42110775\1_Corres\E_Public Involvement\Open House_02-09-2016\2016-02-09_Open House Summary.docx 

traffic on 81st Avenue) and shoulder width needs related to buses, bicyclists, and emergency vehicles. A 

total of three written comments were received at the meeting. Provided are the statements in their entirety.  

• “My Issue is with 5th Street. If we have the center lane as turn only. How on Sunday mornings do 

we ever make a left turn to go to University Ave? If you put a barrier there we can only turn right. 

Leave the road as it is. Thank you.” 

• “Hwy 65 and Osborne does not need a divider.” 

• “I have lived in the area all my life (40 years), and have a daughter that attends Woodcrest. I am 

in favor of anything that helps safety on Osborne. The 3-lane option seems to be a “no-Brainer” 

since it can be done with a mill and overlay with some minor median work. Please consider the 3-

lane option further as the county works toward a preferred option. Additional enhancements to 

better accommodate bikes and pedestrians should also be considered.” 

Much of the conversation during the evening focused on questions about the three-lane roadway option. 

This includes the potential safety benefits, capacity decrease, changes in access if a median is installed at 

certain locations, shoulder widths provided, and emergency vehicle access if there is only one lane of 

traffic in each direction. A three lane roadway has a capacity range of 15 to 18,000 vehicles per day and a 

projected safety increase of 29%. 

Copies of the presentation and Boards will be made available on the project website. 

http://www.anokacounty.us/2506/Osborne-Road-CSAH-8-Corridor-Study 

 

 





 













 










	New Business - Approving CUP and Site Plan for 7777 University Avenue ECC.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Correspondence - January NMTV Update.pdf
	January Classes
	Blaine 50th Anniversary Wrap-Up
	Anoka County Highway Project
	Johnsville Elementary School Project
	Centennial Elementary School Project
	Production equipment consulting for cities and schools
	Computer/Networking consulting for cities and schools




